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NOTICE

Notice is hereby given that the 145" Annual General Meeting of the Members of Teesta Valley Tea
Co. Lid. will be held at “McLeod House™, 3, Netaji Subhas Read, 2 Floor, Kolkata: 700 001 on
Thursday, the 30" September, 2021 at 03,00 P. M to transact the following business --

Oredinary Bosiness

To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statement, consisting of Balance Sheet
as &t 317 March, 2021 and the Statement of Profit & Loss Account and Cash Flow Statement
for the year cnded 317 March, 2021 and the reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors

therson.

2 To appoint a Dircctor in place of Mr. Radhey Kant Dixit (DIN 00607134) who retires by
rodation isud being eligible offers himself for re-appointment.

3: To appeint Branch Auditors and to fix their remuneration.
Special Business ;

4, To Consider and, if thought fiL, to pass, the following Resclution as an
ORDIMNIARY RESOLUTION
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sec.149, 150 & 152 read with Schedule IV
and any other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made
thereunder (including any statutory medification () or re-enactment thereof for the time being
i togee) Mr, Dhruy Bajoria (DIN: 07935582) who's appointment was approved in the last
AGM held on 317 December, 2020 as an Independent Director of the Company, has resigned
trom Board on 12022021, Mr. Dhnrv Bajoria again appointed as an additional Director on
07.07.2021, to hold the office as an Independent Director be and is hereby appeinted as an
Independent Director of the Company to hold the office for a period of five vears we.f.
07072021 re. from 07.07.2021 to 06.07.2026 and shall not be liable to retire by rotation.

Registersd Oilice By Order of the Board

5 & 7, Netaji Subhas Road Teesta Valley Tea Co. Lid.

Kolkata; 700 001 Mudit Bajoria

Dated: 4" September, 2021 Director

(DIN : 00015402)



TEESTA VALLEY TEA CO, LIMITED

Information on Directors seeking Appointment / Re-appointment Pursuant 1o the Regulation
36(3) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015

Itern No.2 of the Notice
| SL No. | Particulars Mr. Radhey Kant Dixit
I | Director Identification No, | 00607134 A i
LDIN) - _
2 | Date of Birth | 10.05.1933
3 | Date of First Appointment | 25.10.2002 - L
4 | Qualification B. 5C. B L
h] No. of Shares held None Pl R
6 | Nature of Expertise Vast Experience in Tea Industries more than 6
i decades.
7 Relationship Between None
Directors Inter S¢
8 | Other Directorship The Bormah Jan Tea Co. (1936) Ltd,

Banarhat Investment Co, Pvt. Ltd.
sentinel Financial Services Pvt. Lid.
Orlando Holdings Limited

Teesta Valley Exports Limited
Meleod & Co. Lid,

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

ITEM NO. 4

Mr. Dhurv Bajoria was appointed as Independent Director at the Annual General
Meeting held on 31.12.2020. He has resigned as such on 12.02.2021. At the Board
Meeting held on 07.07.2021 Mr. Dhruv Bajoria was again appointed as additional
director to hold office as Independent Director, subject to the approval of the
sharcholders at the General Meesting,

In the opinion of the Board Mr., Dhruv Bajoria fulfill the conditions specified in the Act
and meets the criteria of independence specified in Sec.14%6) of the Act. and Rules
made there under for appointment as Independent Director. The Roard considers that the
continued association of the aforesaid person would be of immense bencfit to the
Company and it is desirable to continue to avail their serviecs as Independent Director.
Accordingly, the Board recommends the resolution set out at ltem No. 4 of the
convening Notice for approval by the Share-holders of the € lompany.

Mr. Dhruv Bajoria and their relatives may be considered to be interested in the
respective Resolution in so far as they relate to them individually. No other Director of
the Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their relatives is concemed or
interested, financially or otherwise, in respect of the said resolution.




TEESTA VALLEY TEA CO. LIMITED

Information on Directors seeking Appointment / Re-appointment Pursuant to the Regulation
36(3) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Reguirements) Regulations, 2015

ltem No.4 of the Notice
Sk No. | Particulars ]} Mr. Dhruv Bajoria
| | Director Identification No. | 07935582
{DIN) :
2 Date of Birth 21.11.1994
3 Date of Appointment 07.07.2021
4 Qualification Graduate
3 No. of Shares held NIL _
B Nature of Expertise 6 years of Industrial & Administration Experience
7 Relationship Between Son of Mr. Mudit Bajoria - Other Director of the Co.
Directors Inter —Se -
8 Other Directorship The Bormah Jan Tea Co. (1936) Lid,
Langlai Tea And Industries Ltd.
Baghmari Tea Co. Ltd.
Classique Trade Holdings Ltd.
Sabrang Steel Private Limited
Huldibari Industries & Plantation Co. Ltd.
Saman Tea Pvi. Lid.
Imprints Matketing Pvi. Ltd.
Registered Office By Order of the Board
3 & 7, Netaji Subhas Road Teesta Valley Tea Co. Ltd.
Koelkata: 700 001 Mudit Bajoria
Dated: 4™ September, 2021 Director

(I - (001 5402)



TEESTA VALLEY TEA CO. LIMITED

NOTES:

1)

b)

dj

&)

£

A Member entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting may appoint o
Proy to attend and vote thereat instead of himself: A Proxy need not be a Member of
the Company. Proxies, in order to be effective, must be received at the Company’s
Registered Office situated at 5 & 7. Netaji Subhas Road, Kolkata : 700 001 not less
than forty-eight hours before the Meeting,

In terms of Rule 19 of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014,
4 person can act as a proxy on behalf of members not exceeding fifty and holding in
the aggregate not more than ten percent of the share capital of the Company carrying
voting rights. A member holding more than ten percent of the total share capital of the
company carrying voting rights may appoint a sin gle person as proxy and such person
shall not act as a proxy for any other person or shareholder.

The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain
closed from 23™ September, 2021 1o 30™ September, 2021 (bath days inclusive).

A Member desirous of getting any information on the accounts or operations of the
Company is requested to forward his queries to the Company at least seven days prior
to the Meeting so that the required information can be made available at the Meeting.

Members who have not registered their c-mail addresses so far are reguested to
register their e-mail addresses for receiving all communication including Annual
Report, Notices, Circulars, ete. from the Com pany electronically,

In case of joint holders, altending the meeting, only such joint holder. who is higher in
the order of names, will be entitled to vote at the meeting.

The instructions for members for voling electronically are as under:-

(i) The voting period begins on 27/09/2021 (09:00 AM.) and ends on 290972021
(05:00 P.M.). During this period shareholders” of the Company, holding shares either
in physical form or in dematerialized form, as on the eut-off date (record date) of
23092021, may cast their vote electronically. The e-voting module shall be disabled
by CDSL for voting thereafter.

(i1} Sharcholders who have already voted prior 1o the meeting date would not he
entitled o vote at the meeting venue.

(iii) Pursuant to SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMDICIR/PR2020/242 dated
09.12.2020, under Regulation 44 of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Repulations, 2015; listed entities are
required to provide remote e-voting facility to its shareholders. in respect of all
sharcholders” resolutions. However, it has been observed that the participation by the
public non-institutional sharcholders/retail shareholders is at a negligible level,
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Currently, there are multiple e-voling service providers (ESPs) providing e-voting
facility to listed entities in India. This necessitates registration on various ESPs and
maintenance of multiple user IDs and passwords by the shareholders.

In order to increase the efficiency of the voting process, pursuant to a public
consultation, it has been decided to enable e-voting to all the demat account holders,
by way of a single login credential, through their demat aceounts/ websites of
Depositories/ Depository Participants. Demat account holders would be able to cast
their vote without having to register again with the ESPs, thereby, not only facilitating
seamless authentication but also enhancing ease and convenience of participating in e-
vollng process.

{iv) In_terms of SEBI cireular no. SEBVHO/CFIVCMIDYCIR/P20200242 dated
December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual
sharcholders holding\securitics in demat mode are allowed to vole throush their demat

account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are
advised fo update their mobile number and email Id in their demat accounts in order to
aceess e-Voting facility.

Pursuant to aforesaid SEBI Circular, Login methed for e-Voting and joining virtual
meetings for Individual shareholders holding securities in Demat mode is given

helow:

Type of | Login Method
sharecholders

I} Users who have opted for CDSI. Fasi / Easiest facility, can login through theid
Individual existing user id and password, Option will be made available to reach e-Voling]
Sharcholders page without any further authentication. The URL for users to login to Fasi
holding Easiest are https:/fweb.cdslindia.com/myeasihome/login or visil]
securities in www.cdslindia.com and click on Login icon and select New System Myeasi.
Demat mode :
with CDSL 2)  Afier successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to see the e-Voting

option for eligible companies where the evoting is in progress as per the
information provided by company. On clicking the evoting option, the user will
be able to see e-Voling page of the e-Voting service provider for casting your
vote during the remote e-Voting peried or joining virtual meeting & wvoting|
during the meeting. Additionally, there is also links provided to access thg
s¥stem of all e-Voting Service Providers el
CDSLNSDL/KARVY/LINKINTIME, so that the user can visit the ::-"w'miu}ﬁ
service providers’ website directly.

3) I the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is available i
https:/fweb.cdslindia. com/myeasi/Repistration/Easi Registiration.

4)  Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing Demat
Account  Number and PAN No. from a e-Voting link available
on www.cdshindia.com home page. The system will authenticate the user by
sendmg OTP on registered Mobile & Email as recorded in the Demat Account.
Afler successful authentication, user will be able to see the e-Voting option
where the evoting is in progress and also able to directly access the system of all
e-Voling Service Providers.

B



“Register Online for IDeAS “Portal or

Open web browser by typing the

*Sharcholder/Member’ section. A

hold with NSDL), Password/OTP and a

1} If you are already remstered for NSDL
[ndividual Services wehsite of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following 1TRL:
Sharcholders hitps://eservices,nsdl.com either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once
holding the home page of e-Services is launched, click on the “Beneficial Owner™ icon
securities in under “Login™ which is available under *[DeAS" seclion. A new screen will
demat mode open. You will have to enter your User ID and Password., After successful
with NSDL authentication, you will he able to see e-Voting services. Click on “Access to
e-Yoting™ under e-Voting serviees and you will be able to see e-Voting page.
Click on company name or e-Vaoting service provider name and vou will be re-
directed to e-Voting service provider website for casting your vote during the
remote e-Voling period.
2} 1f the user is not registered for IDcAS e-Services, option lo register is available
at https:/eservices nsdl.com, Select
click at hI_'[|:|5:.ﬂ"ESErvicEﬂ-nﬂdI_mmeacugg Web/ldeasDireciRes jsp
3} Visit the e-Voting website of NSDIL.,
following URL: https:/iwww.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal ( “nmputer
or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on
the 1con “Login™ which iz available under
new screen will open. You will have to enter vour User I} (i.e. your sixteen
digit demat account number
Verification Code as shown on the screen, After successful authentication, you
will be redirected to NSDL Depository site wherein YOu can see ¢-Voting page.
Click on company name or e-Voting service provider name and you will be
redirected (o e-Voting service provider website for castin £ your vole during the
remote ¢-Voting period,
Individual You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through
Shareholders your Depository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility.
(holding After Successful login, vou will be able to see e-Voting option. Once you click
securilics  in on e-Voting option, you will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL Drepository site
demat  mode) after successtul authentication, wherein You can see e-Voting feature, Click on
login  through company name or ¢-Voting service provider name and you will e redirected
their to ¢-Volng service provider website Tor casting your vote during the remote c-
Depository Voting period.
Participants N

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User 1DV Password are advised 1o

use Forget User ID and Forget Password option available at abovementioned website,

mode for any

Helpdesk for Individual Sharcholders holding sccurities in demat

technieal issues related to losin th rough Depository i.e. CDSL and NSDIL

Login type

' Helpdesk details

CDSL

Individual Sharcholders holding
securities in Demat mode with

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact COBL
helpdesk by sending a request at helpdesk evotingimedslindia, comor
contact at (22- 23058738 and 22-23058542-43,

IDeAS rhéi_fiiy, please visit the e- |

| NSDL

[ Individual Shareholders holding
scourities in Demat mode with

Members facing any technical issue in logm ean contact NSDL
helpdesk by sending a request at evotingfansdl.coin or call al
toll free no.: 1800 1020 990 and 1800 22 430

(v) Login method for e-Voting and Jeining virtual meeting for shareholders other
than individual shareholders holding in Demat form & physical shareholders,

&




1} The shareholders should log on to the e-voting website www.evotingindia.com.

2) Chek on “Shareholders™ module.

3) Now enter your User ID

a,
b.
C.

For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID,

For NSDL: 8 Character DP 1D followed by 8 Digits Client 1D,

Shareholders holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number
regisiered with the Company.

4) Next enter the Image Verification as displayed and Click on Login.

2y If

you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to

www.evotingindia.com and voted on an earlier e-voting of any company. then
your existing password is to be used.

6) If you are a first-time user follow the steps given below:

For Sharcholders holding shares in Demat Form other than individual and
Physical Form

PAN Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric *PAN issued by Income Tax Department
(Applicable for both demat sharcholders as well as physical shareholders)

* Sharcholders who have not updated their PAN  with the
Company/Depository Participant are requested to use the sequence
number sent by Company/RTA or contact Company/RTA. !

Dividend | Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of Birth (in dd/mm/yyyy format) as
- Bank recorded in your demat aceount or in the company records in order to login.

Detnls = If both the details are not recorded with the depository or COmpny,

OR please enter the member id / folio number in the Dividend Bank details

Date of field as mentioned in instruction (v).

Birth

(DOB)

(vi) After entering these details appropriately, click on “SUBMIT tab.

(vii) Shareholders holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the Company
selection screen. However, sharcholders holding shares in demat form will now reach
“Password Creation” menu wherein they are required to mandatorily enter their login
password in the new password field. Kindly note that this password is to be also used
by the demat holders for voting for resolutions of any other company on which they
are eligible to vote, provided that company opts for e-voting through CDSL platform.
It 15 strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take
utmist care to keep vour password confidential,

{viit)

{ix)

)

For shareholders holding sharcs in physical form, the details can be used only for e-

voting on the resolutions contained in this Notice,

Click on the EVSN for the relevant TEESTA VALLEY TEA COMPANY
LIMITED on which vou choose to vote.

On the voling page, you will see “RESOLUTION DESCRIPTIONT and against the
same the option “YES/NO™ for voting. Select the option YES or NO as desired. The
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(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

{xiv)

{xv)

(zevi)

(xvi)

option YES implies that you assent 1o the Resolution and option NO implies that VU
dissent to the Resolution.

Click on the *RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK™ if you wish to view the entire Resolution
details.

After selecting the resolution, you have decided to vote on, click on “SUBMIT™, A
confirmation box will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on “0OK",
clse to change your vote, click on “CANCEL" and accordingly modify vour vote,

Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify
Your vote,

You can also take a print of the votes cast by clicking on “Click here to print™ option
on the Voling page.

If a demat account holder has forgotien the login password then Enter the User 1D and
the image verification code and click on Forgot Password & enter the details as
prompted by the svstem.

Facility for Non — Individual Shareholders and Custodians —Remote Voting

Non-Individual sharcholders (ie. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI elc.) and
Custodians are required to log on to www.evplingindia.com and register themselves
in the “Corporate™ module.

A scanned copy of the Repistration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the entity
should be emailed to helnde::k.cmtic:g@cdsiir_ﬁdiﬁ.mm-

Afler receiving the login details a Compliance User should be created using the admin
login and password, The Compliance User would be able to Link the account(s) for
which they wish to vate on.

The list of accounts linked in  the login  should be mailed to
helpdesk evoting@edslindia.com and on approval of the accounts they would be able
to cast their vote,

A scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attorney (POA) which they
have issued in favour of the Custodian, if any. should be uploaded in PDF format in
the system for the scrutinizer to verify the same,

Alternatively Non Individual sharcholders are required to send the relevant Board
Resolution! Authority letter ete. together with attested specimen signature of the duly
authorized signatory who are authorized to vole, to the Scrutinizer and to the
Company at the email address viz: eilevotine?01 4@ mail.com ., if they have voled
from individual tab & not uploaded same in the CDSL e-voling systern for the
scrutinizer to verify the same.

Mr. Babu Lal Patni, Practicing Company Secretary (Membership Mo FCS 2304), has
been appointed as the Scrutinizer to Scrutinize the remote e-voting process in a fair
and transparent manner.

{(xviir} At the Annual General Mecting, al the end of the discussion of the resolutions on

which voting is to be held, the chairman shall with the assistance of the Scrutinizer
order voting for all those members who are present but have no cast their vote
clectronically using the remote e-vating facility or Ballot Form.

(xix} The Scrutinizer shall immediately after the conclusion of Votin g at the Annual General

Meeting, first count the votes at the Annual General Mecting, thereafter unblock the
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votes cast through remote e-voting in the presence of at least two witnesses not in the
employment of the company and make not later than 48 hours of conclusion of the
meeting, a consolidated Scrutinizer’s Report of the total votes cast in favour or
against, if any, to the Chairman or a person authorized by him in writing who shall
countersign the same,

(xx) The Chairman or a person authorized by him in writing shall declare the result of
voting forthwith,

(xxt)  The results declared along with Scrutinizer’s Report shall be communicated to BSE
Ltd, Where the shares of the company are listed.

(xxi1) Please Contact Company’s registrar Maheshwari Datamatics Pvt. Lid, Telephone No
033-22482248, Email Id; mdpldefalyahoo.com for any further clarifications.

(xxili) In case you have any queries or issucs regarding e-voting, you may refer the
Frequently Asked Questions (“FAQs™) and e-voling manual available at
www . evotineindia com under help seclion or write an  email 1o
helpdesk.evotingfaicdslindia.com.

Registered Office By Order of the Board

5 & 7. Netagi Subhas Road Teesta Valley Tea Co. Lid.
Kolkata: TH) ikl Mudit Bajoria

Dated: 4™ September, 2021 Diirector

(DM 00015402



DIRECTORS' REPORT

TEESTA VALLEY TEA COMPANY LTD.

TO THE MEMBERS

ar

Your Directors take pleasure in presenting the 145" Annual Report together with the Audited Statement of
Accounts for the Financial Year ended 317 March 2021

FINANCIAL RESULTS & PERFOHRMANCE

FParticulars 2020-21 2019-20
| Total Revenue 14,66, 018,673 [5.84.90,073
Total Expenses 14,0432 443 16,15.47.240
Profit! (Loss) before Depreciation & Tax 61,86.232 (30,56,167)
Depreciation S0,25.327 51,82.427
Profit Before Tax 1160905 | (82.38.594)
Tax Expenses - Current Tax =~ 2,00,000 -
Deferred Tax (14.045) |  (1,52,146)
Profit’ { Loss) for the Year 0, 74,950 (B0 86 248)
Other Comprehensive Income — -
_Totul Income / {Loss) for the vear 6, 74,950 (B0 86 448)
Halance brought forward from previous year 13,67,07.84% 14,47,04 204
Balance available for appropriations 13,73.82,708 13,67,07.848
Dividend — -—
Tax on Dividend B - -
Transfer to General Reserve o = &
Balance carried forward 13,73,82,798 [53.67.07. 848

DIVIDEND

Due 1¢ meager profit and for future safeguard, your Directors do not recommend any dividend for the vear
ended 317 March, 2021. The dividend on Redesmable Cumulative Preference Shares also notl recommended
as a company having commitment of Capital Expenditure.

TRANSFER TO RESERVES

The Directors do not propose 10 tmnsfer w the General Reserve out of the amount available for
appropriation and an amount of Ks. 13,73,82, 798/ is proposed 1o be retained in the Profit & Loss Account,

OPERATIONS

During the year 3.78,948 kas of tea was manufactured as against 3.85,070 kgs in the previous year. During
the year under review, the production of the Company was low to the previous vear, due to Covid 19 and

unfavarable weather conditions.
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The two Tea Gardens of the Company in Darjeeling, Tessta Valley and Gielle, are situated in the most
beautiful wvalley of Himalaya, facing Kanchen jungha snow clad peaks. Besides scientifically
maintaining over 35 lakh tea bushes on both the gardens, the Company looks after its 2000 workers and
stafl’ with zeal and humane outlook. There are nine Primary Schools, four English Medium Nursery
Schools and two High Schools to impart proper education to the children of the two gardens. The Estates
have 32 beds — well built and well maintained hospital. Two standby Ambulances help serious patients
to be moved to Siliguri and Darjeeling for specialized treatment at Company”s expenses. There are well
maintained 3 crutches where workers® children are kept and looked after and provided with milk and
hiscuits. The houses of the workers and staff are well maintained with hygienic conditions kept around
the labour lines.

Provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 relation to constitution of Corporate Social
Responsibility Committee and compulsory expenditure on Corporate Social Responsibility Activities are
not applicable to the Company during the year.

IMEECTORS RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to Section 134(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 the Board of Dircctors confirm that:

R In the preparation of the Annual Accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been
followed and there has been no material departure.

2, The Directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
Judgments” and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the profitloss of the
Company for that period.

3. The Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company
and for preventing and detecting fravd and other irregularities;

4, The Dhrectors had prepared the Annual Accounts on a going concarn basis.

a The Directors had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that

Such internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively.

6. The Directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all

applicable

laws and that such systems were adequate and operating cffectively.
DIRECTORS & KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

Since the last Report, Mr. Dhruv Bajona (DIN:0T935582) who's appointment was approved in the last
AGM held on 31" December, 2020 as an Independent Director of the Company, has resigned from
Board on 12.02.2021, Mr. Dhruv Bajoria was again appointed as additional directors of the company on
07" July 2021 and he will hold office as such upto the date of the forthcoming Annual General Meeting
to hold office as independent director according to Section 161 of the Companics Act, 2013 read with
the Article — 111 of the Article of Association of the Company. Mr. Dhruv Bajoria have submitted to
the Company his consent, pursuant to the provision of See.152(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, to act as
Independent Director if appointed.

A notice in term of Section 160 of the Act, has been received from a member proposing his appointment
as Independent Dhrector of the Company at the Board Meeting,

Mr. Radhey Kant Dixit (DIN 00607134) will retire by rotation at the forthcoming Annual General
Meeting and heing eligible, offer himself for re-appointment.
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As on 31.03.2021, the company had three Key Managerial Personnel, being Mr. Bharat Bajoria,
Managing Director, Ms. Sneha Singhania, Company Secretary and Mr, Bishnu Charan Dalai, CFO.

Ms. Sneha Singhania. Company Secretary appointed on 01.01.2021. The Independent Directors have
submitted their disclosure to the Board that they meet the criteria as stipulated in Section 149 {6) of the
Companies Act, 2013,

The Details of the Board mesting and General meeting are given i Annexure — |

BOARD EVALUATION

The Board carried out an annual performance evaluation of its own performance, the Individual directors
as well as the working of the Committecs of the Board. The performance cvaluation of the Independent
Directors was carried out by the entire Board. The performance evaluation of the Chairman and the non-
mdependent directors was carried out by the independent directors.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company is having an Audit Committee of the following Directors and the Committee mat four
times during the year:-

Name of the Committes | Nature  of Membersh ||::| _____ Date of Meeting o

Members Directarship 14.09,2020 12,11.2020 |05.12.2020 12.02.2020

Mr. Radhey Kant Dixit | Non Exec- Chairman Present Present | Present | Present
Director

Mr Mudit Bajoria Mon Exac- Membsar Present Present Present Present
Dpector. (| N

Mrs Abha Bajoria | Mon Exec- | Member Present Present | Present | Present
Director L N - = -

All the recommendations made by the Audit Committee were accepted by the Board
NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The eomposition of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee is as follows and the committes met
twice during the year:-

Mame of the Committes | Mature af Membership | _Datr_- arr-.-h:aring
Moembers Directorship 0%.05.20 05.12.2020
Mr Mudit Bajoria Mon Exec- Chairman Prosent Present
Director |
Mr Radhey Kant Dixit Mon Exec- Member Fresent Present
. s Director S e
Mrs Abha Bajoria Non Exec- Member Presant Present
= Directar il

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS BY REGULATORS

No significant and material orders have been passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals Impacting
the going concern status of the Company and its operational in the future.

DETAILS PERTAINING TO REMUNERATION AS REQUIRED UNDER SECTION 197(12)

OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 READ WITH RULE 5(1) OF THE COMPANIES
(APFOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL) RULES, 2014,
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The required details are provided in Annexure *[1" annexed to this Report.

MSCLOSURE UNDER RULE 5(2) AND 5(3) OF THE COMPANIES (APTOINTMENT
AND REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL) RULES, 2014

There is no emploves drawing remuneration in excess of the limits prescribed under Rule 5(2) of The
Companies (Appointment) Rules, 2014, The required details are provided in Annexure ‘II" annexed to
this Report.

PREVENTION OF INSIDEE TRADING:

The Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for Prevention of Insider Trading with a view to regulate
trading in securities by the Directors and designated employees of the Company. The Code requires pre-
elearance for dealing in the Company™s shares and prohibits the purchase or sale of Company shares by
the Dhrectors and the designated employees while In possession of unpublished price sensitive
information in relation to the Company and during the period when the Trading Window is closed.

All the Dyirectors and designated emplovees have confirmed compliance with the Code.
INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS:

The Company has following systems and processes in place so as to implement effective and robust
mternal financial controls:

Policies : Key policies are defined. understood and enforced in the organization.

Operating Procedures : Clearly defined, detmled and harmonized procedures have been devised and
Implemented across the organization.

Behaviour : The culture of compliance with laid down guidelines and procedures is evident through the
actions and behavior of individuals and teams.

Clearly defined roles and responsibilities : Roles and responsibilities are clearly defined for each and
every emploves of the company. It helps the employees in understanding and adhering to the applicable
svstems and processes.

Further, during the vear the company appointed M/s Sushmita Mukhopadhyay & Associates, Chartered
Accountants, Kolkata as an Internal Auditor, The firm 1z avthorized by the Audit Commilies o access
the adequacy and compliance of internal control process, statutory requirements etc. The Audit
Committes met regularly to review reports submitted by the Intemal Auditor. The Audit Commitice
upon discussion with Intermal Auditor set up applicable control measures for the Company.,

VIGIL MECHANISM/WHISTLE BLOWER MOLICY:

The Company promobes ethical behavior in all s business acuvities and has put in place 2 mechantsm
for reporting illegal or unethical behavior. The Company has a Vigil mechanism and Whistle blower
policy under which the employees are free 1o report violations of applicable laws and regulations and the
Code of Conducl. The reportable matters may be disclosed to the Etlnes and Comphiance Task Force
which operates under the supervision of the Audit Committee. Employees may also report to the
Chairman of the Audit Committee. During the year under review, no employee was denied access to the
Audit Committee.

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY:
Pursuant to section 134(3) (n) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of directors of the Company has

adopted a Risk management Policy of the Company. The Company manages, monitors and reports on
the principal risks and uncertainties that can impact its ability to achieve its strategic objectives.
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The Company has introduced several improvements to Integrated Enterprise Risk Management, Internal
Controls Management and Assurance Frameworks and processes to drive a common integrated view of
risks, optimal risk mitigation responses and efficient management of internal control and assurance
activitics. This integration is enabled by all three being fully alipned across Group wide Risk
Management, Internal Control and Internal Audil methodalogies and processes.

ISSUE OF SHARES:

During the Financial vear ended 31% March, 2021

i} The Company has not granted any Emplovees Stock Option,
11) The Company has not issued any Sweat Equity Shares.

tii} The Company has not issved any equity shires with differential rights.
v} The Company has not allotted any bonus shares during the year.

CODE OF CONDUCT:

The Company has a Code of Conduct which is applicable to directors and management personnel of the
Company. The Company believes in conducting business in accordance with the highest standards of
business ethics and complying with applicable laws, rules and regulations.

The Code lays down the standard procedure of business conduct which is expected to be followed by the
dircctors and management personnel in their business dealings and in particular on matters relating
mtegrity in the work place, in business practices and complying with applicable laws elc.

All the directors and management personnel have submitted declaration confi irming compliance with the
code,

DETAILS REGARDING SUBSIDIARIES:

The Company not has any Subsidiaries Company/Associate Companiesiloint Venture during the
financial year,

DEFOSITS
The Company has neither accepted nor renewed any deposits during the vear under review.
GOING CONCERN STATUS

No sigmificant and material orders have been passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals impacting
the going concern status of the Company and its operation in the firture,

MATERIAL CHANGES AFTER END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR

No Material changes and commitments which could affect the financial position of the Company, have
occurred between the end of the last financial vear and the date of this Annnal Report.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES AND INVESTMENT
The Particulars of loans, guarantees and investment have been disclosed in the financial statements for
the vear ended on 317 March 2021

TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES
All contracts/arrangements/transactions entered by the company during the financial year with related
parties were in the ordinary course of business and on an arm’s length basis. During the year, the

company had not entered into any contracts/arrangements/transactions with related l_:n.rti-ns which could
be considered material in accordance with the policy of the company on materiality of related party

transactions.
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Your directors draw attention of the members to Note no, 30 1o the financial statement which sets out
related party ransactions disclosures

AUMTORS

M/s. Basu Chanchani & Deb, Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration Mo, 304049E) Kolkata were
appointed by the Members at the 143" Annual General Meeting as Statutory Auditors of the Company,
o hold office unti] the conclusion of [48th Annual General Mecting to be held in 2024, The Company
has received confirmation from the firm to the effect that their continuing appointment, would be within
the prescribed limit under the Companies Act, 2013,

BEAMCH AUDITORS
M/s B.C. Kundu & Co. Chartered Accountants, retire and are eligible for re-appointment.
AUDITORS REFORT

The observations of the Auditors in their Report are self-explanatory and therefore, need no further
explanation. As repards, procedural lapses are concerned, effective steps are being taken to remove those
lapses. As regards Gratuity the Company has always treated Gratuity in the accounts on cash basis.
smee the value of the Gratuty as on 31.03.2021, does not fully relale to the corenl year, the
Management decided not to provide the value of Gratuily as on 31.03.2021.

SECHRETARIAL AUDIT

In terms of the requirement of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 the Secretarial Audit of the
Company [or the year ended on 317 March 2021 was conducted by Babu Lal Patni, Company Secretary.
The Secretarial Auditor’s Report is attached to this report as Annexure 11 and forms part of the
Director’s Report. As regards. procedural lapses are concerned. affective staps are being taken to remove
those lapses.

ANNUAL RETURN

The extract of Annual Return pursuant to the provisions of Section 92 of the Companics Act, 2013 is
attached to this Report as Annexure IV, A copy of extract of Annual Return is hosted on company’s
websile al www teestavalley net.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES
The required details are provided in Annexure ‘117 annexed to this Report.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY AND TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN
EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

A statement giving details of conservation of energy and technology absorption and foreign exchange
carnings and outgo in accordance with Rule § (3) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2004 is attached
to this report as Annexure V.

DEMATERIALISATION OF SHARES
Your Company's Shares are tradable compulsorily in electronic form under ISIN No INE 718E01011

and your Company has established connectivily with Central Depository Services (India) Limited
(CDSL)
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MANAGCEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REFORT

Industrial Structure, Development opportunity and QOutflow

We were able fo improve upon Tea qualities by undertaking sound agricultural formalities timely, The
production of Tea Estates in Darjeeling district as a whole was satisfactory during the year. Duc to
implementation of better agricultural technology your company was able to achieve higher production,
The company has both short-term and long-term vision to keep the tea bushes in good heart by uprooting
and replanting the old ones. For which price realization was better than the previous year,

The factories on both the gardens are larse, spacious and equipped with the latest machineries in each
department. In fact, our two factories should serve as model tea factories in the Darjecling District.

With cheerful workers and staff, with beautiful plantation and with excellent factories on both the
gardens, the future of the property will continue to remain bright and cheerful.

Risk Concerns and Threats

Your Company has two Tea Plantation unit i.e. Teesta Vally and Geille for producing quality of Teas in
this competitive market the Company needs huge capital investments and also for replacement of its
existing technology and machines. Though the Company has the comandable market in the Tea Industry,
the fuctuation in the Capital Market and current recession leads to lowering the buying capacity of
customers may lead to declining in the profits of the Company, Though the Company has a very
reputation in the locality and vicinity of the Tea Plantation, a permanent solutions to the disturbance of
the Darjeeling and Siliguri area by the Government will definitely works towards the advantage of the
Compamy’s performance and revenue.

AMALAGAMATION

The Scheme of Amalgamation of The Bormah Jan Tea Company (1936) Limited with the
Company has been approved by the shareholders of the Company on 28" March, 2018 at the
meeting convened pursuant to the order dated 2™ February, 2018 passed by the NCLT Kaolkata
bench. The same is pending before NCLT for final order.

EMPLOYEE RELATIONS
The Company has a large work force emploved on tea estates. The welfare and well being of the workers
are monitored closely,

In terme of requirements of Section 4 of the Sexual Hamssment of Woman at workplace (Prevention,
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 the company has formed Internal Complaints Committees for s
workplaces. During the year, no complaint regarding sexual harassment was received by the said
committess,

Your Board of Directors wish to place on record its sincere appreciation for the dedicated services
rendered by the executives, staff and workers ar all levels for smooth functioning of the tea cstates,

Registered Office Bharat Bajoria Mudit Bajoria Ram Kishan Mowal
5 & 7, Netaji Subhas Road, Managing Director Director [hirector
Kolkata - 700 001, M 00109241 [N 015402 DIM ; 00310028

Dated :4™ September, 2021
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PARTICULARS OF BOARD MEETINGS HELD DURING THE YEAR ENDED 31°7

ANNEXURE- 1

MARCH, 2021
5.No | Date of Meeting | Bharat Abha Radhey | Mudit |Dhruv | Ram
Bajoria, Bajoria Kant Bajoria | Bajoria | Kishan
- MLD. Dixit Nowal
1| 8™ May, 2020 Present Present. Present | Present | Present | Present
2 | 28" August, 2020 | Present | Present -- - Present | Prescent
| 3| 14" September,2020 | Present Present - Present | Present | Present
4 | 12" November,2020 | Present Present | Present | Present | Present | Present
5 | 5" December, 2020 | Present Present - | Present | Present Present
_6 _IEE’ February, 2021 | Present Present Present | Present | — Present
7 | 9" March, 2021 Present Present Present Present |- Present
PARTICULARS OF GENERAL MEETINGS HELD DURING THE LAST THREE
FINANCIAL YEARS
S.No | Financial | Type of Date  Time Venue
Year Metting
I. 2018-2019 |AGM 21" December, | 05.00 PM. | 3.Netaji Subhas Road,
2018 Kolkata — 700 001
B 2019-2020 (AGM 30" September, | 03.00 P.M. 3.Metaji Subhas Foad,
2019 N Kolkata — 700 001
3 2020-2021 |AGM 31" December, | 03.00 P.M. 3 Metaji Subhas Foad,
= 2020 Kolkata - 700 001
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ANNEXURE-II

INFORMATION PURSUANT T0O SECTION 197(12) OF THE COMPANIES ACT.2013
READ WITH RULE 5(1) OF THE COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT AND
REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL FPERSONNEL) RULES 2014

(1) Ratio of the remuneration of each Director/KMP to the median remuneration of all the
employees of the Company for the financial vear:

["Median remuneration of all the employees of the Company For the financial year 2020- | Rz 49,355/~
2001
The percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in the financial year 6.31 %
The number of permanent crployess on the rolls of company as on 31 March 2021 1676 .
| Ratio of %% increase in
remuneration to | remuneration in
Name of Director median the financial

remuneration of | year 2020-2021
_all employees

Executive Directors

Mr Bharat Bajoria, Managing Director 2431:1 11.11 %

Non Exceutive Directors

Mrs. Abha Bajoria 0.51:1 25 %

Independent Directors

Mr. Mudil Bajoria etz Mo Increase
| Mr. Radhey Kant Dixit i 0.20:1 | Mo Increase |

Mr. Dhruv Bajoria 041:1 100 %
‘Mr. Ram Kishan Nowal ' 0.51:1 100 %

Key Managerial Person =

Mr. Bishnu charan Dalai, CFQ 6991 e |
‘Ms Sneha Singhanisa, {_:'ﬁtfllpij.n:}' Eénrctnn' (o1 | 100% =

Notes:

1) The ratio of remuncration to median remuneration is based on remuneration paid duri ng the
period 1% April 2020 to 317 March 2021,

(2) Average percentile increase already made in the salaries of employces other than the
managerial personnel in the last financial year and its comparison with the percentile
increase in the managerial remuneration and justification thereof and point out if there
arc any exceptional circumstances for increase in the managerial remuneration;
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Average percentile made in the salaries of employees other than the Key managerial personnel
in the last financial year i.e 2020-21 was 6.31% where as the increase made in the Key
managerial remuneration for the same financial year was 11.11 %)

(3) Remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the Company : The remuneration

paid

during the financial vear ended 317 March 2021 is in terms of the Remuneration Policy of

the

Company.

{(4) DISCLOSURE UNDER RULE 5(2) AND 5(3) OF THE COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT AND

REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL) RULES, 2014 ;

A List of top 10 Employees:-

Marme of Designatio | Remunera | Nature of Qualifications | Dateof Ape | Last Name of
the n tipn Pasd® | Employment, | and COMmMmances {yea | employment | the
Ermnployee whether Expericnce ment of rs} held before Director
contractual o amplayment Joining the of the
otherwise Company Camgary
| whao is
IO Fm PO L - relative
Bharat Managing | 12,00,000 | Employes B.5¢c, OLD6.1990 ] H.A Lelf
Bajoria Directod
| Jdoy Manager- B 46,000 Employes BAc. 15063002 58 HEAP Group MNLAL
| Majindar harketing
Abhishek | CEQ 704,000 | Employee B.A 16.02.2004 | 49 | JayshreeTea | MA
|D’&L {Tech.) & Industries
B D Hore Manager E0FEn | Emploves B.com 15.07.2004 | 47 M HLA.
VK hanager 508,523 Employeag B.Com 1812 09 | 65 Marybong Tea | NA
Dlanchadia | Estate
Tukcha Ram | Amistant 467,650 Employee BA 24032020 45 logesh M.A
| Jakar Manager Chandra Tea
Estate
MK Ansistant 461,175 Employee B.5e. 05.12. 2006 (32 MLA M.A,
hothay hanager
Birendra Field 4,256,775 Employes H.A 0LD1.1981 53 LA oA
Chbwelri Astitant
| sPsingh | Assistant | 4,24.950 | Employee 8.Com 15113018 | 43 | NA T RaA
Rathoare Manager
5 Bharma AETiSEINT 4 10113 Employas B.Coim 01041930 (7] M MA
nanager

* Bemuneration imcludes salary, allowances, bonus and value of certain

the basis of Income Tax Act and Rules.

B. There is ne cmployee employed throughout the [inancial year

remuneration in excess of one crore and two lacs rupees per annum.

perquisiles evaluated on

who was in receipt of

C. There is no employee employed for a pant of the financial year who was in receipt of
remuneration in excess of eight lacs and fifty thousand rupees per month.
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TEESTA VALLEY TEA CO LTD
2> & 7TNETAJI SUBHAS ROAD

KOLKATA - 700 001

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED

31°" MARCH, 2021

BABU LAL PATNI
COMPANY SECRETARY
51, NALINI SETT ROAD
5" FLOOR, ROOM NO-19

KOLKATA — 700 007

Annexure -IIT
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BABU LAL PATNI 51, NALINI SETT
ROADCOMPANY SECRETARY 5H FLOOR, ROOM NO 19

KOLKATA - 700 007
TEL NO: 2259-7715/6
Email id: patnibl@yahoo.com

FORM No MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 317" MARCH, 2021

[Pursuant to seclion 20471} of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies
fAppointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel] Rules, 2014]

Tos;

The Members,

Teesta Valley Tea Co Lid
5 & T Netap Subhas Road
Falkata — 700 Q0]

1 have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and
the adherence to zood corporate practices by Teesta Valley Tea Co Lid (hereinafier called the
company). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for
evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my opinien thereon.
Based on my verification of the Teesta Valley Tea Co Ltd’s books, papers, minute books, forms
and returns filed and other records maintained by the company and also the information provided
by the Company, its officers, apgents and authorized representatives during the conduct of
secretarial audit, | hereby report that in my opinion, the company has, during the andit period
covering the financial year ended on 317 March, 2021, generally complied with the statutory
provisions listed hereunder and also the Company has proper Board processes and compliance
mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject (o the reporting made hereinafter:

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by Teesta Valley Tea Co Lid (“the company™) for the financial year ended on 317
March, 202 | according to the provisions of:

i I'he Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

i} The Securities Contracts (Repulation) Act, 1956 ("SCRA™) and the rules made
thercunder;

iy The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thercunder;

v} Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder
o the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External
Commercial Borrowings.

v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange
Board of India Act, 1992 (*SEBI Act™):
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a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

b) The Secunties and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Repulations, 2015;

¢) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (lssue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2018; (Not applicable to the Company during the Awdit
Period).

d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Emplovee Benefits)
Regulations, 2014; (Not applicable to the Company during the Audil Period).

e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities)
Regulations, 2008; (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period).

f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrar to an Issue and Share Transler
Agents) Regulations, 1993;

g) The Sccurties and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations,
2009; (Mot applicable to the Company during the Audit Period).

h} The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations,
2018: (Mot applicable to the Company during the Audit Period).

i} The other laws that are applicable and complied by the company are:
i) The Tea Act. 1953
i) Food Safety Standard Act, 20006,

ii} Plantations Labour Act, 1951

[ have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:
i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

i) The Listing Agreement entered into by the Company with the Calcutta Stock
Exchange.

iti) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015,

During the period under review except in some cases the Company has generally complicd with
the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above
subject to the following obscrvations:

1. The Company has not complied with the various provisions of the Regulations and
Guidelines preseribed under the Sceuritics and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 and
the Listing Agreement entered into by the Company with Calentta Stock Exchange.

2. In some cases the Company has not complied with the provisions of Secretarial
Standards relating to the meeting of the Board of Directors and Committees thereof,
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I further report that

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive
Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition
of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out in
complionce with the provisions of the Act.

The management has certificd that, adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board
Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a
system exists for secking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda
items hefore the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting. However, in some
cases Lhe sume were not available for my verification.

Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members® views, if any, are captured
and recorded as part of the minutes.

[ further report that W monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations
and guidelines needs to be further improved so as to commensurate with the size and operations
of the Company,

I further report that during the Audit period there was no specific eventsfactions having a
major bearing on the Company’s affairs in pursvance of the above referred laws, rules,
regulations. guidelines, standards etc,, referred to above. The Scheme of Amalgamation of The
Bormah Jan Tea Company (1936) Limited with the Company has been approved by the
sharcholders of the Company on 28™ March, 2018 at the meeting convened pursuant to the order
dated 2™ February, 2018 passed by the NCLT Kolkata bench. The same is still pending before
NCLT for final order.

Place: Kolkata Sipnature: Sd/-
Dated: 20™ August, 2021
Name of the Company
Secretary in practice:  BABU LAL PATNI
FCS No : 2304
C.P.No. : 1321
UMM : FOO2304C000812564

Mite:

This report 15 to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure A and forms
an inlegral part of this report.



BABU LAL PATNI 51, NALINI SETT ROAD
COMPANY SECRETARY 5H FLOOR, ROOM NO 19

To,

KOLKATA - 700 007
TEL NO: 2259-7715/6
Email id: patnibl@yahoo.com

“Anncexure AT

The Members,

Teesta Valley Tea Co Lid
5 & 7 Netaji Subhas Road
Kolkata-70000H

My report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1

Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the
company. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on
my audit.

| have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable
assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification
was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. |
believe that the processes and practices, [ followed provide a reasonable basis of my
opinion.

[ have not verificd the comectness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of

Accounts of the company.

Where ever required, T have obtained the Management representation about the
compliance of laws. rules, and regulations and happenings of events etc.

The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules,
regulations, standards is the responsibility of management. My examination was limited
to the verification of procedures on test basis.

The Sccrctarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the
company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the manasement has conducted
the affairs of the company.

Signature; Sd/-

Babu Lal Patni

Practizing Company Secretary

FCS No- 2304

Certificate of Practice Wumber-1321

Date: 20" August, 2021

Place: Kolkata
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{wi)
{vii}

AMMEXURE - 1V

FORM NO. MGT 2

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
As on financial year ended on 31.03.2021
[Pursuant to 5ection 92 (3] of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Company
{Management & Administration) Rules, 2014]

REGRISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS:

CIN

Registration Date

Mame of the Company
Category/Sub-Category of the Company
Address of the Registered office

And contact details office

Whether hsted company
Marmz, Address & contact Details of
Registrar & Transfer agent, if any

e L LD LT T P —

:L15491WBRIB7EFLOOOO347

tAS11/18YE

: TEESTA WVALLEY TEA COMPANY LIMITED

: Company having Share Capital

¢ 5 & 7, Metaji 5ubbas Road, Kolkata = 700 001
cTel.—033 22483585, 22480313

: email : accounts
s Website = werw teestavalley.net

:Yaz

: Maheshwari Datamatics Pvi Limited

23, B.N. Mukherjee Road, Kolkata = 700 001
s Tel, 033 22435029, 22482248

avall

PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

All the business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the company

shall be stated

&l Mo | Mame and Description of main products / MIC Code of the % to total turnﬁwr_m"
cseniees Product/service the campany
1 Growing and Manufacturing of Tea 01271, 10791 100 %
Il PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASS0CIATE COMPANIES
5l.No | Name & Address of the Company CIMSGLN % of Shares Held Applicable S=ction

MNOT APPLICAEBLE
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Iv.
i}

Share Holding Pattern (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)
Category-wise Share Holding

Category of Shareholders

No of Shares held at the beginning ] Ec-f Shares held at the end of the | %

of the year [as on 01-April-2020]
(See note 1)

year [As on 31-March-2021] {5ee

note 2)

change
during
the
YEar

Demat

Physical

Tetal

Dermat

Physical

Total

A.

PROMOTERS

(1)

Indizn

aj

Individual/ HUF

19600

G599

26299

19600 |

BGIS

26290

b)

Central Govt,

17.53

c)

State Gowvtls)

d)

Bodies
Corporates

1

GE264

4418

BEZEE

B6264

L E

Banks/Fl

f

Any other

Sub-total (AN1)

19600

72963

92563

61.71

19600

72363

97563

{2}

Foreign

a)

MEls — Indivigdual

bl

Other—
Individuals

==

=]

L=N 1=

=

=} =

=

= |

c)

Badies Corp,

d)

Banks/Fl

el

Ay nther_

Sub-total (A)Z)

=l = =]

o Y e o Y e

ooo|o

o R e} ) ]

Total sharehaolding of
Promoter

)
B

= {AM1) + [A)2)

72963

92563

oo DO D

1.71

ok | [ S S | S

b L e R

Y e e ]

2563

BL7L | O

PUBLIC
SHAREHOLDMNG

Institutions

Mutual Funds

]

Banks/Fl

2400

B43

.70

c}

Central Gouvt.

3400

G43

1043

270 [0

d)

State Govt(s)

Venture Capital
Funds

Insurance
Companies

gl

Flls

h}

Foreign Venture
Capital Funds

Other (specify)
Overseas
Corporate Body

Sub-total (B){1)

3400

643

4043

| 2.70

3400

ba3

270 |0




Catiegary of Sharchalders

| Mo of Shares held at the beginning

of the year [as on 01-April-2020]
(See note 1)

Mo of Shares held at the end of the
vear [As on 31-March-2021] (e

note 2)

change
during
the
Wear

Damat

Physical

Tatal

Demat

Physical

Total

1 Mon-Institutions

a) Bodies
Corporates

il Indian

i} Owverseas

14940

14940

896

14540

14940

9.9&

h] Individuals

i) individual shareholders
halding nominal share
capital upto Rs.1.00 lac

7483

244315

31802

21.27

8933

22975

31508

21.27

Ciilindividual shareholders
halding nominal share
capital in excess of

Rz 1.0 lag

) Others [Specify] |

Mon Resident Indians

656

6545

4.36

6546

B546

4.36

Calified Foreign
Inwestor

Custodian of Emermy

Property

Fweignﬁtiunalf-

Clearing Mem hers

Trusts

Foreign Bodies-D R

Sub-total (B} {2}

7483

43911

53304

3559

8933

44461

23354

3558

10283

46554

S7437

2829

12333

45104

57437

38.29

C. SHARES HELD BY
CUSTODMAN FOR GDRs &
ADRs =
Grand Total {A+B+C)

| 30433

119517

150000

100

31933

113067

150000

100
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ii} Shareholding of Promoters

iii} Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change)

5.No. | Name of Shareholding at the beginning | Shareholding at the end of the | % change in
Shareholder's | of the year (See Note 1) year (See Note 2) share
holding
during the
year
Moof |%of |%ofshare | Moof | %of | % of share i
Shares | total | Pledged/ Shares | total | Pledgod/
share | encumbered Share | encumbered
1 Bharat 21560 (1437 (0 21560 |1437 |0 a
o Bajoria
2 Mohanbari | 15900 | 10.60 | 0 - | 15900 | 1060 |0 0
Inw. Co Pt
Ltd
3 Trishul CoPut | 11223 [ 748 |0 11223 [748 |0 0
Ltd
4 Orlando 1457 | 697 |0 1457 697 |0 o B
Holdings Ltd
5 Tingamira 8525 | 568 (O 8525 | 568 [0 0
Tea Seeds Co
I-td ......
[5 Teesta Valley | 10445 | 5.896 | O 10445 (696 |0 0
Exports Lid
T Banarhat 7414 4.549 1] F414 4 94 i 1]
Investment
Co Pt Lt |
8 Abha Bajoria | 4738 [316 |0 4733|316 |0 0
) Agastya 2000 [134 |0 2000 | 1.34 o 0
Bhartia
Beneficiary
Trust
10 Birdie 300 021 |0 300 021 0
Trading Pvt
Ltd
| Total 92563 [61.71 |0 92563 | 6171 |0 a

'5. | Category of Sharehalders | Sharehelding at the | Cumulative Sha reholding
Mo, heginning of the vear during the year
Mo, of % of the total | Mo. of shares | % of the total
shares shares of the shares of the
Cormipany company
Mo Change | = =
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) Shareholding Pattern of top ten shareholders [other than Directors, Promoters and holder of GDRs

and AHs)
i 5. No. C.Eutf_-e-:ur-,- of 3hareholders _Shamhull:liing at the Cumulative $ha rehnﬁing
beginning of the year during the year
Mo, of % of the total | No. of shares | % of the total
shares shares of the shares of the
P S Company COMpany
1 Kamal Parekh G000 4.00 GO00 4.00
2| I Poliard Willson 4000 2.67 4000 2.67
3 United India Insurance Co Ltd 2000 | 133 2000 133
4 Kalpana Biswas 2000 1.23 — =
5 Vinay Chandra 1400 0.53 1400 0.93
G Giridhar Gupta Somisetty = - 1019 068
7 | Mutan Chandra 1000 067 1000 0.67
a Tu_l.g-.j'__ii;jmm Banerjee a00 0.60 aa0 0.0 I
E sangesta Shah 900 | 0.60 900 L
10 [ Bahadur Chand Jain 850 0.57 850 0.57
11 Pravin Chandra Narandas 800 0.53 800 0.53

v} Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel :

$.MNo. | Category of Shareholders Shareholding at the Cumnulative Shareholding
beginning of the year during the year
' No. of % of the total | No. of shares | % of the total
shares shares of the shares of the
Company company
1 fharat Bajoria 21560 14.37 21560 14.37
2 | Abha Bajoria 4739 3.16 4733 3.16




V. INDEETNESS

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding but not due for payment

Secured Loans | Unsecured Deposit Total
excluding Loans indebtedness
deposits
Indebtedness at the beginning of N =
_the financial year
1) Principal amount 5,79,42,793 | 174,00,000 - 7,53.42.793
2) Interestduebutnotpaid | L 15,04,078 - 15,04,078
3) Interest accrued but not 73 628 = 23,628 |
due
i Total (142 + 3] 5,79,66,421 |  1,89.04078 - _7,68,70,499
Change in Indebtedness during B
the financial year B )
Addition 1,89,73,007 95,16,877 = 2,84,39 884 |
Reduction 1,00,07,183 66,69,754 = 1,66,76,437 |
Met Change £9,15,324 28,47,623 - | 117.63,447
Indebtedness at the end of the " P T
financial year
1) Principal amount 6,68,58,617 |  2,01,50,000 —~ 8,70,08,617
2) Interest due but not paid _NIL 16,01,701 - _16,01,700
3) Interest accrued but not 23,623 ~ — 23,628
dLI'E 5 e il
Total (1+2+3) 6,68,82,245 |  2,17,51,701 | - 8,86,33,46

Wi, REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
A. Remuneration to managing Director, Whole-time directors and/or manager
5 No. | Particulars of Remuneration Total Amount (in Bs) |
— | Mr éhamf-ﬂ:afuria, MO |
1. Gross Salary . L e =
a) Salary as per provisions contained in Section | 12,00,000
17 (1) of the Income Tax Act, 1961
b} Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income Tax | NIL
Act, 1961 B .
¢} Profits in liew of salary u/s 17(3) | Income Tax | NIL
Act, 1961
2, Stock Option NIL B
3. |SweetEquity sz TSR =
4. | Commission - % of the profit | NIL
B Others NIL |
Total L ooy
Ceiling as per the Act ) ;




B. Remuneration to other Directors

(5. Particulars of Mame of Directors Total
Mo. | Remuneration ABajoria | | RKDixit | Mudit | Dhruv | RUK Amount
Bajoria | Bajoria | Nowal | (inRs)
1. Independent Directors 3 | . |
Fee for attending - — 20,000 | 25,000 | 45,000
board meetings
Fee for attending = i - o i =
Committes meetings
Commission - - i -— - —
| Others — i — & "l
Total (1) - - - 20,000 | 25,000 | 45,000
2. Other Non-Executive
(hrectors o
Fee for attending 25,000 10,000 |20000 |— - 55,000
board meetings
Fee for attending - — -
Committee meetings
-_Et:lrnmi:-:siun o -— sae
| Others = - == e
Tatal {2} 25,000 10000 |20000 |—  [--  |55000
Total Managerial 25,000 10,000 | 20,000 20,000 | 25,000 | 1,00,000
Rernuneration {1+ 2]
Owerall Ceiling as per
Act =
L. Remuneration to Key managerial Personnel other than MDY/ Manager/WTD
S.Mo. | Particulars of Remuneration Total Amount (in Rs.)
Mr B.C. Dalai, sneha
CFO Singhania L. 5
1. Gross Salary A
a) Salary as per provisions contained in 3,45,000 36,000
Section 17 (1) of the Income Tax Act,
1961
b] Value of perquisites ufs 17(2) Income Tax | NIL NIL
'ﬁ":t' lgﬁl ...... S - S
c) Profits in liew of salary u/s 17(3) ) Income | NIL NIL
_____ Tax Act, 1961
x Stock Option NIL Mg
3, Sweet Equity NIL MIL
A, Commission - % of the profit NIL NIL
5, Others i MIL NIL
Total ) 3,45,000 36,000




Wil PENALITIES/PUNISHMENT/COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES

Type Sectionof | Brisf Details of | Authority Appeal |
the Description | Penalty/Punishment | [RD/NCLT/COURT] | made, if
Companies Compounding fees any {grve
At | impased details)
A Company
Penalty Mone
Pumishrrent
Compounding
E. Directors
Penalty MNone
Punishment
Compounding
C.  Other Officers in Default
Penalty Mome
Punishment
Compounding
Registered Office : Bharat Bajoria Mudit Bajoria Ram Kishan Nowal
5 & 7, Netaji Subhas Road, Managing Director Director Director
Kolkata - 700 001. DIM : Q0109241 DM 0001 5402 DN ;003 1028

Dated 4% September, 2021
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ANMNEXURE - ¥

TEESTA VALLEY TEA COMPANY LIMITED
ANNEXURE TO THE DIRECTORS REPORT
(A) CONSERVATION OF ENERGY

Appropriale sieps have been taken for conservation, viz-a-viz improved utilisation of energy by adopting better techniques
and replacing old machinery and'or equipment where necessary.

(B} RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT (R & D)

(i} Mo technolopy has been imported during last five vears

() The Company subscribes to Tea Besearch Association within
the meaning of Section 3501} of the Income Tax Act

(C)  FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND QUTGO

Taotal foreign exchange used and earmed

Foreign exchange used HIL

Forcign exchange eamed NIL
Registered Office ; Bharat Bajoria Mudit Bajoria Ram Kishan Nowal
3 & 7, Netaji Subhas Road, Managing Director Director Director
Koolkata - 700 001, DTN = D010%241 DN 2 00015402 DI - D03 10028

Diated :4" September, 2021
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BASU CHANCHANI & DEB BASU HOUSE

CHARTERED ACCDUNTANTS 3 CHOWRINGHEE APPROACH, KOLEATA-TUHRIT2
Plione:l33-221 26253, 221 2-801 6
E-meail: b bed 1973 mpmailoom

www.basuchanchanianddeb.org

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
TG THE MEMBERS OF TEESTA YALLEY TEA COMPANY LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements of Teesta Valley Tea Company Limited

Dualified Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Teesta Valley Tea Company Limited (“the
Company™). which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31" March 2021, the statement of profit and loss
Lincluding other comprehensive income), the statement of changes in Equity and the cash flow statement
for the year on that date, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory

information (hereinafier referred to as “the financial statement™).

In vur opinion and 10 the best of information and according to the explanations given to us and subject to
things stated on the basis of Qualified Opinion, the aforesaid financial statements give the information
required by the Companics Act, 2013 (the “Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view
n conformity with Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended (“Ind AS™) and other accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the company as at March 31, 2021, the

Proht, comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that dage.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing {$As)
specitied under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of (he
Chartered Accountants of India (1CAI) together with independence requirements that are relevant to our
audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made there under, and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAD's
Code of Ethies. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate 10

provide the basis for our audit opinion on the fnancial statements, Gratuity has not been provided on
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actuarial basis as required under Ind A% - 19, the gquantum lying uaprovided for not being readily

ascertainghle.

Key Audit Matters

Rey audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our

audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our

audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming of opinign thereon, and we do not provide a

separale opinion on these matiers.

We have determined the matiers described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our

report.

Key audit matter

A. Revenue Recogunition
Revenue for the company consists primarily of
sale of products.

Revenue from the sale of products is recognized
at the moement when performance cbligation of

the underlying products have been completed.

Further, the company focuses on revenue as a
key performance measure. Therefore, revenuee
was our area of focus included whether the
approgriately
valued, and whether the siznificant transactions

acergals  were  misstated and

had been accurately recorded in the Statement of

Profit and Loss.

Replantation subsidies are recognized on Cash
basis due to uncerlainly of realizations,

Refer corresponding note for amounts recognized
as revenue from sale of products.

Our key procedures included the following:

i)

b)

c)

d)

Assessed the appropriateness of the company’s
revenue recognition  accounting  policies, by
comparing with the applicable accounting standards:
Tested the operating effectiveness of the general IT
control emvironment and key IT application controls
over recognition of revenoe.
Performed test of details:

DAgreed  samples

documentation and approvals; and

of s=ales to  supporting
Performed focused analytical procedures:

1} Compared the revenue for the current year with
the prior year for variance' trend analysis and
where relevant, completed further inquiries and
testing to corroborate the variances by

and  external

benchmarks, overlaying ouwr understanding  of

considering  both  internal
industry; and

Congidered the appropriateness of the company’s

description of the accounting policy, disclosures

related to revenue and whether these are adequately

prasented in the financial statement.
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B. Litigations and claims —provisions and
contingent liabilities

As disclosed in MNotes detailing contingent
liabilily, the company is involved in direct,

indirect tax and other litigations (*litigations') that |

are pending with different statutory authorities.

Whether a Hability is recognized or disclosed as a
contingent liability in the financial statements is
inherently judgmental and dependent on a number

of significant assumptions and assessments.

The amounts involved are potentially significant
and determining the amount, if any, to be
recognized or  disclosed in the  financial
statements, is inherently subjective.

Our key procedures included the following:

= Assessed the appropriates of the company’s
accounting policies, including those relating 1o
provision and contingent liability by comparing with
the applicable accounting standards;

* Assessed the company process for identification
of the pending litigations and completeness fin
financial reporting and also for monitoring of
significant developments in relation o such
pending hitigations;

= Engaged subject matter specizlisis to gain an
understanding of the current status of litigations
and monitored changes in the disputes, i any,
through discussions with the management and by
reading external advice received by the company,
where relevant, to establish that the provisions had
becn  appropriately recognized or disclosed as
required;

* Assessed the company's assumptions and estimates
in respect of litigations, including the liabilities or |
provisions recognized or conlingent liabilities
disclosed in the financial statements. This involved
assessing  the probability of an unfavorable
outcome of a given proceeding and the reliability

of estimates of related amounts:

s Performed substantive procedures on  the
underlying calculations supporting the provisions
recorded;

= Assessed the management’s conclusions through
understanding precedents set in similar cases; and

Considering the appropriateness of the company”s
description of the disclosures related to litigations and
whether these adequately presented in the financial
slatements.

C. Evaluation of uncertain tax provisions

tax
provisions including matters under dispute which

The Company has matenial uncertain

involves significant judgment 1o delermine the

possible outcome of these disputes.

Refer Mote No34 of the fnancial statements.

| precedence and other rulings in evaluating manapement ‘s

Principal Andit procedures

Obtained details of completed tax assessments and
demands for the year ended March 31, 2021 from
mamagement. We invalved our internal experts (o
challenge the management’s underlying assumptions in
eatimating the tax provision and the possible outcome of

the disputes. Our internal experts also considered legal

position on these uncertain tax positions. Additionally,
we considered the effect of new information in respect of
uncertain tax positions as at April 1, 2019 o evaluste
whether any change was required to management’s
position on these uncertainties.
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Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

The Company’s Beard of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information, The
other mformation comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis,
Board’s Repont including Annexures to Board's Report, Corporate Governance and Shareholdes™s
Information, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Qur opinion on the financizl statements does not cover the other information and we do Not EXPress any
form of assurance conclusion thersan

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility 15 to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstalement of this
other information, we are required w repornt that fact, We have nathing to report in this regard.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company®s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect lo preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial
position, financial performance, total comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the
companies in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in India.
The respective Board of Directors of the companies are also responsible for maintenance of the
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of
the companies and for preventing and detecting frauds and other trregularities; selection and application
of appropriate accounting policies; making judzments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent:
and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate imternal financial controls, that were
operating clfectively for ensuring the accuracy and compleleness of the accounting records, relevant to
the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error..

In prepaning the Anancial statements, the Board of Directors of the company 15 responsible for
assessing the company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management cither
intereds to liquidate the company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting process,

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Andit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives arc to ohtain reasonable assurance abowt whether the financial stalements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or crrorn, and o issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantes that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or emor and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these fimancial statements,
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As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due 1o
fraud or emror. design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain awdit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion, The risk of nat
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, 25
frand may invalve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, Under section 143(3)(1) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company which has companies incorporated
i India, has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of
such controls,

= Evaluate the appropriatencss of accounting policies used and the reasonablencss of pecounling
estimates and related disclosures made by management,

= Conclude on the appropriatencss of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group o continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, 1o
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are hased on the audit evidence obizined up to the date of our
auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the company o coase to continue
85 A going concern,

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in
a manner that achieves fair presentation.

* Obtain sufficient appropriate audil evidence reganling the finaneial information of the entities or
business activities within the company to express an opinion on the financial stalements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of the financial statements of
such entities included in the financial statements.

Materiality 15 the magnitude of misstatements in the financial slatements that. individually or in
aggregate. makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the
financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative mateniality and qualitative factors in
{1} planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the resulls of our work: and (i1) to evaluate
the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with povernance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any sigmificant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with povernance with a statement that we have complied with relovant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
mallers that may reasonably be thought w bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.
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From the mallers communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of nrost significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine
that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report thar:

a)  We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and beliel” were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid financial
statements.

bl In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the
aforesaid financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of those
books.

¢} Accounts of Branches audited by the branch Auditors u/s 143 (£) of the Companies Act, 2013
have been sent to us under the provisions of the said section.

d) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (incleding Other Comprehensive
Income), Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this
Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account maintained for the purpose of
preparation of the financial stalements.

¢ In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under
Section 133 of the Act, read wilh Rule 7 of the Companies {Accounts) Rules, 2014,

M} Om the basis of written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2021 taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2021
from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

gl With respect 10 the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
company and the operating effectiveness of swuch controls, refer to our separate report in
SAnmexure 17 (ur report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating
effectiveness of the company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting.

h} With respect to the other matters to be included in Auditor’s Report in accordance with the
requirements of Section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to explanations given 1o us, the
remuneration paid by the company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the
provisivns of Section 197 of the Act
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2,

i) With respect to the other matiers to be included in the Awditor's Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies {Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given 1o us:

L. The financial statements disclose impact of pending litigations on the financial
pasition of the company in note no 34 of financial statement.

. The company has not entersd into long term contracts or derivative contracts,
iti.  There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required Lo be transferred, to the

Investor Education and Protection Fund by the COMPANY.

As required by the Companies {Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order™) issued by

the Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure
2" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.
For Baso Chanchani & Deh
Chartered Accountants
R.No 304049E

UDIN: 21051800AAABE1435 Biswanath Chattopadhyay
Place : Kolkata Partner
Date : 4" September ,2021. {M.No. 051500



BASU CHANCHANI & DEB BASU HOUSE

CHARTERED ACCOUNTAHNTS 3, CHOWRINGHEE APPROACH, KOLKATA-7OOO72
Phone:033-2212-6253, 2212-8016
E-mail: la.bed1973%gmail.com
werw . basuchanchanianddeb.org

Annexure-1

Report on the Internal Financial Controls onder Claose (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the

Companies Act, 2013 (*the Act™) referred to in Para V (2} (f) of our report of even date.

We have audited the intemal financial controls over financial reporting of Teesta Valley Tea Company
Limited (“the Company™) as of 317 March 2021 in conjunction with our audit of IND AS financial

statements of the Company for the year ended on that date,

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management s responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal contrel over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of infernal control stated in the “Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial

Controls over Financial Reporting™ issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate intemal fmancial
controls thal were operating effectively [or ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of nts business,
including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of
frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of

reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors® Responsibility

Cir responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over finaneial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our andit in accondance with the Guidanee Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Ower Financial Heporting (the “Guidance Note™) and the Standards on
Auditing, issued by ICAl ond deemed to be preseribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act,
2013, to the extent applicable to an awdit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of
Intemnal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Tndia.

Those Standards and the Guidance Nole require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable sssurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over
financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all

material respocts,
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Our audit involves performing pracedures to obtain audit evidence aboul the adequacy of the internal

financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectivencss,

Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls over financial reparting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists. and
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed

risk,

The procedures sclected depend on the auditor's Judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of IND AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or errar,

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for

our awdil opinion on the Company's intemnal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting
A company's intemal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of IND AS

financial statements for external purposes in accordance with gencrally accepted accounting principles

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedurcs
that;

(1} pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the

transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

(2) provide reasomable assurance thal transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and

directors of the company; and

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition,

use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material elTect on the fnancial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due 1o error
or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control
over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of

compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate,

Y2



Opinion

[n our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system
over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at 31" Muarck 2021, bascd on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Gundance Note on Audit of Intersal Financial Contrals Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute

of Charteraed Accountants of India,

For Basu Chanchani & Deb

Chartered Accountants
UDM: 210518500AA ABET1435 Biswanath Chattopadhyay
Place : Kolkata Partner
Date : 4™ September 2021, (M. No.051800)
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BASU CHANCHANI & DEB BASU HOUSE

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 3, CHOWRINGHEE APPROACH, KOLKATA-TO00T2
Phone:033-2212-6253, 2212-8016
E-mail: la.bed197 2@ gmail.cam
www.basuchanchanianddeb.org

ANNEXURE 2

Report on the matiers specified in Paragraphs 3 and 4 of THE COMPANIES (AUDITORS
REPFORT) ORDER, 2016, referred to in Para V' (1) of our report of even date

l.a. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including quantitative details

and situation of fixed assets.

b. The fixed assets have been physically verified by the management at reasonable intervals. As
mformed, no material discrepancies between book records and the physical inventories have been noticed

on such verification.
¢. The title deeds of immovable property are held in the name of the Company.

II. The mventories have been physically verified al reasonable intervals during the year by the
management. The discrepancies noticed on physical verification between the physical stock and book

records were not material and have been properly dealt with in the books of accounts.

L. The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured fo companies, firms, limited liability
partnership or other parties listed in the register maintained under Section 189 of the Companics Act,
2MM3. Accordingly, the provisions of paragraphs 3(ii), 3iiii)a) to 3(ii)c) of the said order are not
applicable.

IV. In our opinion and according to explanations given to us, the Company has complied with the
provisions of Section 185 and 186 of the Companies AcL 2013 in respect of loans, investments.

guarantess and securities as applicable,

V. The Company has not accepted deposits from the public within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of
the Act and the Rules framed thereunder to the extent notified. + ccordingly, paragraph 3(V) of the Order

i not applicable.

VL On the basis of records produced we are of the opinion that prima facie cost records and aceounts

prescribed by the Central Government under sub seetion (17 of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013

4



in respect of products of the company covered under the rules under said section have been made and
maintained. However we are neither required to carry out ner have carried out any detailed examination
of such accounts and records.

VIlLa) According to information and explanations given to us, the company is regular in depositing with
appropriate authorities undisputed stalutory dues including provident fund, employees state insurance |
income tax, Goods and Service Tax, custom duty, value added tax, cess and other statutory dues to the
extent applicable to it.  According to the information and explanations given to us, the arrcars of
Providend Fund dues Rs. 1,69.03,276/~ (Previous Year Rs, 91,779,401/~ ) , labour welfare fund dues Rs
4,21, 327 (Frevious Year Bs. 4,21 3275 and Land Revenue dues FEs 1,111,563/~ (Previous Year BEs. Mil)
as ai 31" March, 2021 for a period of more than six moenths from the day they became payable.

WILW) The dues on account of Agriculture Income Tax, Income Tax and Provident Fund disputed by the

company and not heing paid, vis-g-vis forums where such disputes are pending are mentioned below:-

Name of the Statute Nature of ducs Amounnt Period to which Forum where

[ B5.) the amount dispute is pending

relates

locome Tax :
Income Tax Act. 1961 | Short Depostt of T8 1,23.568/- 19493-1994 I TOfcer (TDE)
Income Tax Act, 1961 Assessment Dues 35353498/ 2003-2014 C 1T (Appeals)
Income Tax Act, 1961 Azzessment Dues 268,030/ 2014-2015 C 1T (Appeals)
Agriculture Income
Tax :
Apriculture Income AGILT 80,339/ 1975-19T06 Assessing Officer
Tax

- 1

VIIl. Based on our audit procedures and as per the information and explanations given by the
management, we are of the opinien that the company has not defaulted in repayment of dues to any bank

or government. Company has no debenture holder or linancial mstitutional borrowing during the year.
IX. Term loans have been used for the purpose they were oblained. No money was raised by way of
public offer (including debt instruments) during the vear by the company.

X. Mo fraud has been noticed or reported on or by the company during the year

¥l. The managerial remuneration has been paid or provided in accordance with the provisions of section

197 read with Schedule W of the Act.
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Xl The Company is not a Nidhi Company and accordingly paragraph 3 (XII) of the Order is not
applicable.

XILAI the transactions with the related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of
Companies Act, 2013 and the details of related party transactions have been disclosed in the IND AS

Financial Statements as required by the applicable Indian Accounting Standards.

XIV.The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or
partly convertible debentures during the vear.

XV, The Company has not entered into any non-cash transaction with directors.

XVLThe Company is mot required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act,
1934,

For Basu Chanchani & Deh
Chartered Accountanis

UDIN: 210318004 AABE 1435 Biswanath Chattopadhyay
Place : Kaolkata Partner
Date : 4" September 2021, (M. No.D51800)



TEESTA VALLEY TEA CO. LIMITED
3 & 7, Netaji Subhas Road, Kolkata - 700 001,

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 315T MARCH , 2021

Az at 3st Asal 3st
I |Particulars NOTE March, 2021 March, 2020
Rz} (Rs.})
Il |ASSETS
1. Non-current assels
Prapery Plant and Equipment ! 198 370,422 185 482 237
Capital Work in Progress = -
_____|Intansible Assels 4 138,101 203,658
Financial Assets
Investments 5 - =
Lozns G 3,452 456 3,452 465
her Fiancial Assels [ 123,568 123,568
Man Current Tax Assels (Met) A 834,572 821,894
Deffered Tax (Fieed Assets) 2.575374 2,561,329
Dther Mon Current Assets -
= Total Mon Current Assets 205,494,503 196,645,147
2. Current Assels
Invenlornesg g 107,784 474 a7 173,243
Biological Assets other than Bearer Planis B 23,911,500 7748200
Financial Assets
Trade Receivables 2] 261,220 2026115
Cash and Cash Equivalents 10 1,028 977 B48,631
Qther Bank Balances
Loans 11 21592274 4,607,104
Other fiancial Assals 12 11,733,760 10,613,113
Current Tax Assets (Met) 13 3 7B9 383 3,530,109
Cither Current Assels 14 575,964 211.017
Total Current Assets 151,281,522 127 A&7 532
Tolal Assels 157,776,024 324,102,679
The accoompaning nates are an integral part of these financial staterments.
This is the Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date.
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For Basu Chanchaes & Deb
Chartered Accountants
R.No.508043E
Biswanalh Chaliopadhyay
Fasbm
{M.No. 05180 Bharat Eajaria Mudit Bsjoria Ram Kishan Nowal B C Dalai Snizha Singhania
LIDIN 21801 608N BE £35 Managing Diresicr Direcior Oirector CFO Company Secretary
Place: Hodata O : 0003344 [EIL e =RET e DIH - oDI1003E

Datod (The £ih September, 2029
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TEESTA VALLEY TEA CO. LIMITED
5 & 7, Netaji Subhas Road, Kolkata - 700 001,

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 315T MARCH . 2021

As at 31st As at 31st. |
I [Particulars NOTE March, 2024 March,2020
- (R=.} (R}
Equity and Liabilities
Equity
Equity Share Capital 15 1,500,000 1,500,000 |
= Other Equity
Reserve & Surplus 16 144,882 798 144,207 848
Total Equity N 146,382,798 145,707 848
Liabilities
MNon Current Liabilities
Fianancial Liabilities
Borrowings 17 17,271,087 16,570,205
Provigions =5
Deffermed Tax Liabilities (Met)
Other Non Current Liabilities —=]
Total Non Current Liabilities 17,271,587 16,570,205
Current Liabilities
Fianancial Liabilities |
Borrowings 18 B3,344 578 72,842,790
Trade Payblas 18 15,208 487 14,235,505
Cther Financial Liabilitics 20 12,043 452 6,607,752
Other Current Liabilibes 29 B3.023.903 G5, T26, 755
Pravisions 3
Current Tax Liabilities {Net) 2z 410,818 410,819
Total Current Liakbilities 184,121,638 161,824 625
Total Liabiliteis 211,393,226 178,394,830 |
Total Equity and Liabilities 237,716,024 24 102,673
Summery of Sigficant accounting pelicies 2
The accoompaning notes are an integral part of these financia staterments,

This is the Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date.

Far Basu Chanchani & Deb
Charfensd Acopontands

R Mo Ty

Bicwanath: Chamupa.ﬂﬂiyl'r

Parter

(M, Mo, 051300) Bfiarat Bajaria
UDdH | 31051800 A88A01 1425 Meanagiog Derecior
Place: Kalkata OIM - Dnfpazat

Dated :The dth September | 2021

Muslit Bajaria
Darectar
DO nooi5402

Fam Kishai Moaal

Diregtor
oire ; nos1002e

ug

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

E C Datap
CFG

Sneha 5|I'||’_.|||m:iu
Company Secredany



TEESTAVALLEY TEA CO. LIMITED
5 & 7, Netaji Subhas Road. Kolkata - 700 001.

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31ST MARCH , 2021

31st March,20201 | 315t March, 2020
HOTE E .
{Rs.) iRs.)
INCOME ::
Ravenue from Operations 23 146,258, 060 155,333 302
Other Income 24 320,606 2,167 771
Total Revenue ".I-IIE,ETE,ETE 158,491,073
=
EXPENSES ::
Change in Inventones of Finished Goods 25 {12,576, 100) (2,438 260}
Change in Biclogical Assets 2556 {18,183, 300) 4,044 420
Employees Benefits Expenses 28 110,281,381 106,435,128
Finance Costs 2 7,447 820 7,549,081
Depreciabon & amortization expenses 28 5,025 327 5182 427
Other Expanses 29 51,442 542 45,856,871
Tolal Expenses 145457 770 155!?1‘556?
Profit before Exceptional & extra ordinary items 1,160,905 {8,238 594)
Excaptional ltems . -
Extra Ordinary bems 5
Prafit before tax 1,160,905 (8,238,594)
Tax expenses.
Income Tax 200,000 -
Agricultural Income Tax z .
Deferred Tax including MAT {Depreciation) (14,025} {152,148)
Profit £ (Loss) for the year 674,850 (8.086.447)
Cither Comprehasive Income;
{2) tems that will not be reclassified to Profit or Laoss
Remeasurements of past employment defined benefits plans -
{b) Changes in fair value of Equity Inatruments throwgh
ather Comprhensive Income - =
Other Comprehesive Income [ (Loss) : =]
Total Comprehenssive Income for the year 674,850 (8,086,447}
Before Excaptional ltems (Basic & diluted) g (33)
After Exceplional Crdinary ltems (Basic & diluted) ) (55)
Summery of Siglicant accounting policies 2
The accoompaning notes are an integral part of these financial staterments.
Thiz is the profit & Loss Statement referred to in our report of even date.
For and on behall of the Board of Directors
For Basu Cruanchars & Deb
Chamensd ACCoanGings
R.Ho 2 0ede s
Bizwanath Chatiopadhyay
Faier
(MM, D150 Eharal Bajoria Musdit Bgaria Ram Kishan Nowal B C Dalai Sneha Singhania
UDIN 221051 800AR A BE1 435 Managing Direcior Dirgcinr . Diractor CFO Company Secrelary
Flace: Kolkata DiM : DOT0%92491 DIN ; 00or S0

Dated “The d4th Seplember | 2021

DK - 00310028
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Statement of Change in Equity for the year ended 31st March 2024

Particulars Amount Total
(Rs) (Rs.)

Opening As on 151 Aprl 2019 1,500,000 | 1,500,000

Acdd [Less) @ Changes during the year i ;

[Closing A= on 3751 March 2020 1,500,000 | 1,500,000

Cpeming A% an 150 April 2020 1,500,000 1,500,000

Add (Less) - Changes during the year - &

Closing As on 315t March 2021 1,500,000 1,500,000

Other Equity :

Farticulars General Reserve | Retained Earnings Total
(R=.} (Fs.) (Rs.)

Cpening As on st Aped 2019 7,500,000 144 794 20 152 294 Z0F

Add: Transterred from Retained Earmings . - -

Ackd | llems of Diher Comprehensive Income Recognised

directly in Redained Earmings

Acd - Profil s the year - (8, 086,448) (8086 448)

Closing az on 315! March 2020 7.500,000 136,707,848 T 20V H4E

Opening As on 15t Apeil 2020 7,500,000 136,707,848 | 144,907.648

Add: Transferred from Retained Earnings 2 = E

Add | lems of Clher Comprehensneg Income Recogmised

directly in Relamned Earmings
Add - Profif for the vear - G744 950 674,250
|:|I'.I5II'IH a5 on 3158 March 20621 ¥ 500,000 13?.33?_&?93 144 682, 7HE

The accoompaning notes are an integral part of these financial staterments.
This is the Statement of Change in Equity to in aur report of aven date,

Fod Basu Clunc=ani E Qins
Chanered Sepuntants:

FMo, J04043E

L Chistop

Parinr

[, ho, 0516%0) Bharat Baparia HMudit Bapria Flam Kighis Nowal B & Bala
UL 210018 0ASALRF1435 Managing Direcioe Cirector Diracinr CFO
Fracs: Holkala DON : DSt leRd QI - D03 R} OiW - 0011326

[ased (The 4th Eepleméser | 2004

For and on behalf of the Board of Direclors
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Bneha Singhania
Cmmpany SaoraLary




TEESTA VALLEY TEA COMPANY LIMITED

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR TIE YEAR ENDED 31.03.2021 (Indirect Method)

Pursuant o Clause 32 of the Listine Asreement

A CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Mat Profit before taxation and extra-ordinary items

Adjustments for ;

1

Depreceation

2 Loss (Profit) on sale of Assets
B Inferest Income
4 Inderest E.:-:'p-t_:n;u!_;

Operating Prafit before Working Capifal changes

Adpustment For -

ek Bd —

Trade & Corrent Receivables
Ivenbories

Biiological Asscis

Trade Payables

Casls Generated from operations

Diirect Taxes Paid

Casly Flow before extra-ordinary items

Exceptional Items -

Expenses for Previows Years

Cnsh Flow from operating activilies

B CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

fardt Ged B

Payment ogainst acquisition of Fixed Assets
including pavment against capatal Labiliy

Proceeds from Sale of Fixed Assels
Inv=eirment relization (made) during the vear
Interest Received

A al Agat
J1st March 215t March
0zl i
Hs, Has. Kz, K=
1LEGO505 (3238 5%4)
S5, 527 3 182,427
(0, 245) =
(X, AT (248.411)
TAT,E20 12,156,331 7590 081 12,533,097
13,317,236 4,30 503
3,374,934 (4,930,872)
(1B1E,231) (34517610
(16,163, 30d) 4,094,420
21,697,603 26,902 376
(1,701,994 22584163
11,615,242 26,878 6060
(771,922 {43610
10,843,320 25033047
10,843 320 23.933.047
(14,882,715 {15 590 725)
125,000 -
242 768 (14,514.947) 264,504 (18,334,851
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C CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds Short Term Borrowings
Repayment of Long Term Bomowings

I

2

3 Interast Paid

4 Long Term Loan Received

Met Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash & Cash Equivalents {Opening Balance)

Cash & Cash Equivalents (Closing Balance)

10501, 758

{7.350,107)
7001382

3.852.973

CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS COMPRISE OF-

Balances with Scheduole Banks

Current Aceonnts

MABARD (TDAS-2007 Account

Cash In Hand

Motes:

4,793,977

151,346

4612631

181,346

930,607
3,764,000

79375

4,793,977

1,320,485

(7,240,624

(2,134,257

 {8,054.396)
(456,180}

—

S0nEE1

4,612,631
{456,180

174,506
3.704.000

T4,025

4,61 2631

I Above statements have been prepared in indirect method except in case of mberest. dividend, purchase &
sale of investments and taxes which have been considered on the basis of sefual movement of cash, with

corresponding adjestments in asets & labilities

2 Cash & Cash Equivalents consist of cash in hand, balance with Banks and deposits with MABARD,

3 Addirions 1o Fixed assets are stated inclusive of movements of Capital work in progress between
beginning and end of the year and treated a5 part of investing activities.

Fait Birvm Chanchosd & Cuh
Chariesed Acesuntamtx

MM IRds

Binwaroe® Chatiogatipsy
Parlar

MLKo. 8518303

LI (1051 E0AAAART 1415
Places Habats

Dustad : Thi &y Sapbesibeer | 001

Ftaepl Bajuria

Managisg s cbar
(LS ] R

For and on behall of the Board of Directors

Mt Epinrla
Dissctor
[AH ! DaF1543T
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Ram Eihan Kewal
Hrecoor
LAN : SRR

B G Diatal Sneha Singhaia
R Cmpany Hecretary
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Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 317 March 2021
1. BACKGROUND :

Teesta Valley Tea Company Limited (CIN: L15491WB1876PLCO00347, PAN : AAACTOTE2D) is a
public company limited by shares incorporated in India. The shares of the company are [isted in
The Calcutta Stock Ewchange Limited (CSE). The company is engaged in cultivation,
manufacture and sale of black tea.

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES :

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of
these financial statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

Z (A) Basis of Preparation :

Compliange with Ind AS

These financial statements comply in all materials aspects with Indian Accounting Standards
{(IND AS) notified w/s 133 of the companies Act,2013 ("the act”) Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 and as amended by the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
{Amendments) Rules, 2016,

Classification of current and non-current

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s
normal operating cycle and other criteria set out in the Ind AS 1 - Presentation of finandial
Statements and Schedule 11T to the Companies Act, 2013, Based on the nature of products and
the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash
equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of
current/non-current classification of assets and liabilitias,

Historical Cost Convention

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the generally accepted
accounting principles in India under the historical cost convention, except for the following:

Biological assets (including unplucked green leaves) - measured at fair value less cost to sell.
Bearer Plants — measured at fair value.
2(B). Segment Reporting :

Operating segments are reported in @ manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to
the chief operating decision maker.
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2{C )} Foreign Currency Translation

Foreign currency transactions are transiated into Indian Rupee (INR) which is the functional
currency (i.e. the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates)
using the exchange rates al the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses
resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation of monetary assels
énd liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at year end exchange rates are recognised in
profit or loss.

2 (D) Revenue Recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of
returns, claims and discounts to customers, Revenue excudes amounts collected on behalf of
third parties, such as Value Added Tax and Goods and Services Tax,

The Company recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can be relisbly measured, it is
probable that future economic benefits will flow to the Company and significant risk and reward
incidental to sale of products is transferred to the buyer.

Z(E) Government Grants ;

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value where there is a reasonable
assurance that the grant will be received and the Company will comply with all attached
conditions.

Government grants relating to income are deferred and recognised in the profit or loss over the
period necessary to match them with the costs that they are intended to compensate and
presentad within other operating income.

2(F) Accounting for Taxes on Income :

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period’s
taxable income based on the applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by
changes in deferred tax assets and liabiliies attributable to temporary differences and to
unused tEx losses.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted at the end of
the reporting period. Deferred income tax is provided in full on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the finandal
staternents.

Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or
substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period and are expected to apply when the
related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.
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Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences and unused tax
losses only if it is probable that future taxable amounts will be available to utilise thase
temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is 3 legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets and liabiliies and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation
authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally
enforceable right to offset and intends efther to sattle on a nat basis, or to realise the asset and
settle the liability simultzneousty.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to
iterms recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is
also recognised in other comprehensive income ar directly in equity, respectively.

2(G) Inventories :

Raw materials induding harvested tea leaves, produced from own gardens are measured at
loweer of cost and net realisable value, Cost being the fair value less cost to sell at the point of
harvest of tea leaves.

Stores and Spare parts is valed at cost. Finished Goods is valed at estimated net realisable
value. Cost of Finished Goods comprise of direct material, direct labour and appropriate portion
of variable and fixed overhead expenditure. Cost of inventories also indudes all ather coste
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Costs are assignad
to individual items of inventory on the basis of weighted average method. Net realisable value (s
the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

2(H) Biological Assets :

Biological Assets of the company comprises of unharvested Green Leaves, Tea leaves growing
on tea bushes are measured at fair value less cost to sell and cost to Manufacturs with changes
in fair value recognised in Statement of profit 2nd loss.

2 (I) Einancial Assets ;
Classification :

The Company dassifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:

those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income,
or through profit or loss), and those measured at amortised cost.

The dassification depends on the Company's business model for managing the financal assets
and the contractual terms of cash flows.
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Measurement *

AL initial recognition, the Company measures a finandial asset at its fair value. Transaction costs
of financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensad in profit or loss.

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash
flows represent sololy payments of principal and interest are measured at amortised cast,
Interest income from these finandal assets is included in finance income using the offective
interest rate method.

Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI): Assets that are held for collections
of contractual cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where the assets’ cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest, are measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (FYTOCT). Interest income from these financial assets is included in
other income using the effective interest rate method.

Fair value through profit or loss: Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or
FVTOCT are measured at fair valye through profit or loss. Interest income from these financial
a55els is included in other income.

2(1} Eguity instruments -

The Company measures all equity investments (except subsidiary and associate) at fair value
through profit or loss. However where the Company’s management makes an irrevocable choice
on initial recognition to present fair value gains and losses on specific equity investments in
other comprehensive income, there is no subsequent redlassification of fair valye gains and
lossas to profit or loss.

Divicend income is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the right to receive
dividend is established.

Z(K) Cash and Cash Equ ivalents :

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents
includes cash on hand, deposits held at call with financial institutions, other short-term highly
liquid investments with original maturitics af thrae months or less that are readily convertible to
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and
bank overdrafls. Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current [fiabilities in the
palance sheet.

2(L} Trade Receivables -

Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measurad at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less allowance far impairment, if amy.

Z{M) Offsetting financial instruments:
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Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet
where there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The
legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in
the normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptey of the
Company or the counterparty.

2(N) Impairment of financial assets:

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether a finandal asset (or & group of financial
assets) held at amortised cost and finandial assets that are measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income for impairment based on evidence or information that is available
without undue cost or effort. Expected credit losses are assessed and loss allowances
recognised if the credit quality of the finandal asset has deteriorated significantly since initial
recognition.

2(0) Derecognition of financial assets -

A financial asset is derecognised only when the Company has transferred the rights to recaive
cash flows from the financial asset, or retains the contractual rights to receive the cash Aows of
the finandial asset, but assumes a contractual obligation to pay the cash flows to one or more
recipients.

Where the entity has not transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the
financial asset, the finandal asset is not derecognised. Where the entity has neither transferred
a financial asset nor retains substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial
asset, the financial asset is derecognised if the Company has not retained control of the
financial asset.

Z(P) Financial liabilities :

Initial recognition and measurement :

The Company recognises all the finandal liahilities on initial recognition at fair value minus, in
the case of a financial lability not at fair value through Profit or Loss, transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial liability.

The Company's finandal lhiabilities indude trade and other payables, loans and bormowings
including bank overdrafts, finandial guarantee contracts.

Subsequent measurement :

All the finandal liabilities are classified as subsequently measured at amortised cost, except for
those mentioned seperatety.

Financial iabilities at fair value through profit or loss :
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Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include finandal liabilities held for trading
and finandial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.
Finandal liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of
repurchasing in the near term.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.

For liabilities designated as Fair Value through profit or loss, fair value gains/ losses attributable
to changes in own credit risk are recognized in Other Comprehensive Income. These
gainsflosses are not subsequently transferred to Profit ar Loss., However, the Company may
transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes in fair value of such lia bility
are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

2(7) Property, Plant and Equipment :

All items of property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less depreciation and impairment,
i any. For this purpose, cost includes deemed cost which represents the carrying value of
property, plant and eguipment recognised as at 1st April, 2016 measured as per the previous
generally accepted accounting principles and also indudes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acguisition of the items. Properties in the course of construction are carried
at cost, less any impairment loss.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of asset.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s Carmying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
&5 appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of any component accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised when replaced. All
other repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the reporting peried in which
they are incurred.

Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value : Depreciation is calculated
using the written down value method {except Bearer Plants and Intangible Assets which is
depreciated by using Straight Line Method) to allocate their cost, net of their residual values on
the basis of useful lives prescribed in Schedule 11 to the Companies Act, 2013. Ttem of Fixed
Assets for which related actual cost do not exceed Rs, 5,000 are fully depreciated in the yiear of
purchase.

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the
end of each reporting period.

Gains and losses on dispesals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount.
These are incduded in profit or loss within other income/expenses.

2(R) Bearer Plants :
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Bearer plants comprising of mature tea bushes are stated 2t cost less accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

The cost of uprooting of old tea bushes, rehabiliation of land, replanting and young tea upkeep
and maintaince upto year 3 for the year of planting are capitalised as mature plants, capital
wark in progress. From year 4 onwards capital work in progress s treated as bearer plants and
depreciated using Straight line method over the expected useful life of 150 years, when the
bearer plants reaches maturity stage with no residual value.

Costs incurred for infilling are generally recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

2(5) Intangible Assets :

Computer Softwear : Costs associated with maintaining software programmes are recognised as
an expense as incurred. Costs of purchased software are recorded as intangible assets and
amortised from the point at which the asset is available for use.

Amortisation methods and periods @ The Company amortises intangible assets with a finite
useful life using the straightline method over 5 years,

2(T) Provision, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets, legal or constructive -
Provisions are recognised when there is a present obligation as a result of a past event and it is
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation and there is a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are
measured at the present value of management’s best estimate of the expenditure required to
seftle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period. The discount rate used to
determine the present value is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risk specific to the liability. The increase in the provision due to
the passage of time is recognised as interest expense.

A disclosure for contingent liabilities is made when there is a2 possible obligation arising from
past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or nonoccurrence
of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company or a
present obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannat be made.

When there is a possible obligation or @ present obligation and the likelihood of outflow of
resources is remote, no provision or disdoesure for contingent liability Is made.

Contingent Assets are not recognised but are disclosed when an inflow of economic benefits is
probable.

(L) Employee Benefits:

Short-term Employee Benefits : These are recognised at the undiscounted amount as expense
for the year in which the related service is renderad,
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Gratuity : Gratutly, if any, is being accounted for as and when paid.
Bonus : The Company recognizes a expense for bonuses as and when paid.
2(V) Leases @

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are not transferred
to the Company as lessee are dassified as operating leases. Payments made for renewal of
lease or rent on lease are charged to profit or loss. Depreciation on finance lease charged by
using Straight line method over the balance lease period.

2(W) Impairment of non-financial assets:

Assels are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in drcumstances indicate that the
Carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognisad for the amount by
which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is
the higher on an asset's fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. For the purpase of
assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately
identifiable cash fiows which are largely independent of the cash flows from other assets or
group of assets (cash-generating units). Non-finandal assets that suffered an impairment are
reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at the end of each reporting period.

2{X) Research and Development;

Revenue expenditure on Research and Development is recognised as a charge in the Statement
of Profit and Loss. Capital expenditure on assets acquired for Research and Development is
added to Property, Plant and Equipment, if any.

2() Borrowing costs :

Interest and other borrowing costs attributable to qualifying assets are capitalised. Other
interest and borrowing costs are charged to Statement of Profit and Loss.

2(Z) CRITICAL ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS :

The preparation of the financial statements require the use of accounting estimates which, by
definition, will seldom equal the actual result. Management also needs to exercise judgement in
applying the Company's accounting policies.

This note provides an overview of the areas that involved 2 high degree of judgement or
complexity, and of items which are more likely to be materially adjusted due to estimates and
assumptions turning out to be different than those originally assessed. Detailed information
about each of these estimates and judgements is included in relevant notes together with
information about the basis of calculation for each affected line item in the financial statements.

Critical estimates and judgements : The areas involving critical estimates and Judgements are:
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Taxation : The Company is engaged in agricultural activities and accordingly, significant
judgement is involved in determining the tax lizbility for the Company. Also there are many
transactions and calculations during the ordinary course of business for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain. Further judgement is involved in determining the deferred tax
position on the balance sheet date.

Deprediation and amortisation : Depreciation and amortisation i5 based on management
cstimates of the future useful lives of the property, plant and equipment and intangible assets.
Estimates may change due to technological developments, competition, changes in market
conditions and other factors and may result in changes in the estimated useful life and in the
depreciation and amortisation charges.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment An impairment exists when the carrying value of
an assel exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs to sell
and its value in use.

Provisions and Contingencies Provisions and contingencies are based on Management's best
estimate of the liabilities based on the facts known at the balance shest date.

Fair Value of Biological Assets The fair value of Biological Assets is determined basad on recent
fransactions entered into with third partics or available market price less cost of manufacture.

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated, They are based on historical experience
and other factors, including expectations of future events that may have a financial impact on
the Company and that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

2.(ZA) RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS ENTAILING
INSERTION/MODIFICATION OF NEW/EXISTING ACCOUNT ING STANDARDS :

Ind AS 116, Lease Accounting

(a) Definition of lease (financial and operating) has undergone change pursuant to mandation
of new standard negating the eariler one under Ind AS 17 (dropped) for relevant accounting
treatment,

(b) 1. Ind AS 12, Income Taxes — on application of appendix C on uncertainty over income tax
treatments.

2. Ind A5 23, Borrowing Costs — Laying down specific borrowings cost to be considered for
capitalisation

3. Ind AS 109, Fnandal Instruments — on treatment of prepayment features with negative
compensation

4. Ind AS 19, Employee benefits — Dealing with plan amendment, curtailment or settlement
pertaining to defined benefit plan.The company is in the process of evaluating the impact of
such amendments.

64



Teesta Valley Tea Co. Limited

L 5. Non-Currentinvestments (held at cost unless stated otherwise)

[ Particulars 31st March 2021 | 31st March 2020 I
(RS} [Rs.)
Invesiment other than Trade ]
Total: & - ]
| 6. Loans (Unsecurcd & Considered good)
Particulars 31st March 2021 | 31st March 2020 |
[R5} {Fs.)
Security Deposits 852 465 952 468
Court Deposit 2,500,000 2,500,000
- Total 3.452 466 3,452 466

7. Other Financial Assets

Particulars 31st March 2021 | 31st March 2020 |
{Rs.} (s
Balance in Current account altached by fiscal authorties 123,558 123,568
Tetal 121,568 123,568

| TA. Tax Assels [Net)

Particulars st March 2021 315t March 2020
{Rs.) (Rs.)
Advance Payment of Tax (Net of Provisions Rs. SO0~ S 572 821 804
(P. ¥. Rs. 150000/-)
Total B34 572 821,284
| 8. Inventories -
Particulars 1%t March 2021 | 31st March 2020 |
L {ﬁﬁ] I:Hﬂ]
Stock af stores 2.264 839 4.229.642
Finishwd Goods (Stock of Tea) 105,519,635 92943 535
tock of Food Stufl - 65
5 Tolal 107,784,474 97,173,243

[8A. Biological Assets other than Bearer Plants

Particulars 315t March 2021 | 31st March 2020
1= (R} (Fs.)
Fair Value of Biological Assets Other than Bearer
Planls {UInharvested Teaa Leawas) 23.911,500 {748 200
1l Total ; 23,911,500 7.748,200
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Teesta Valley Tea Co. Limited

(9. Trade Receivables (Unsecured and Considered Good)

Particulars 35t March 2021 | 313t March 2020
{Hz=.} (Fs.)

Mher debis 251,220 2,026,115

Total Eﬁl.;l“ﬂ 2026115

| 10. Cash & Cash Equivalents

Farticulars 31st March 2021 | 31st March 2020
(Rs.) (Rs)

Balances with Banks in Current Accounts 850,603 774,506

Cash-in-Hand 79,375 74,125

Total 1,029,977 848 631

| 1. Loans{Unsecured & Considered Good)

Particulars 3st March 2021 | 31st March 2020
(Rs.) (Rs.)
Loan fo Body Corporate 409,732 409,732
Advance to Emplovees 1,782 542 4 197,372
Total 2,192,274 4,607,104
[ 12. Other Financial Assels [Unsecured & Gonsidered Good) |
Farticulars 315t March 2021 | 315t March 2020
Rz (Fs.}
Deposit with NABARD (TDAS-2007 Account) 3,764,000 3,764,000
Interest accured on others(NABARD) 157,133 173,330
Intesest accured on loan lo Body Corporate 235,817 235,517
Subsidy Receivable (Tea Board of India) Farg 810 G435 965
Total: 11,733,760 10,613,113

| 12. Current Tax Asscls (Net)

Particulars

31zt March 2021

31st March 2020

(Rs.) {Rs.)
Advance Income Tax {Net of Provisions Rs. 587500 3,780,353 3,530,109
{P. ¥, Re.5825000:)
Taotal 3,7B9, 353 3,530,103
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Teesta Valley Tea Co. Limited

[14. Other Current Assets |
[ Farticulars | 31s0 March 2021 | 31st Masch 2020
5] (R
Bialancs vilth Gowl, Aughoontices 22, Tan 118,541
Advance fo Suppliers 223774 514 955
Oihars 152,401 276,516
= Todal 578 064 511,016
[ Equity And Lizbilzies I
Enuity
Pardiculars st March 2021 | 3181 March 2020
[F5] EEN]
15. Equity Share Capital
Artbargad |
AROCOL (P ¥, S00000) Equity Shares of ks 101 cach 5,000,000 5,000,000
1FS000 (P, 175000 6% Redeamabig Cumulahve
Preference Sharas of Bs, 100~ each 17 B0 000 17,500,000
22,500,000 22,500,000
Issupd, Subsiibed £ Fially Paid-ag ;
150000 (F.Y. 1500000 Equity Shares of Fa. 105 rach filly paid up 1,500,010 1,500,000
TB2DI0 [P ¥, 162000} 5% Redeernable Cumdainve
Priference Shares of . 100 aach 16,200,000 16,200,000
&) B% Redeernable Cumilghive preference sharas ane rodeernabie
Aty time aller expirg of five yars and bedare expirg of hwerty yEIrS
Fedpective dale of slolment of Prefonsnos Shares numbering
BODO0, 50300, 25000 and 37000 of Rz 100- agch WTIE HEied on
26.00,202, 12,00, 2005, 27,03.2007 and ED.M.MW.WV&I}'
Less - Traneder ta Long Tenm Barowngs 16,200,040 18,200,000
Foolmale :
1. Faght Prederonce Repayabilty & restriclion if 2y, an
b Shares- [Equily & Preforance) ang freety franslerabile provided -
i} Applisalion of ransfer i n duly presenbad instrsmeont: duly sfampe,
euibind by dransiarer and franferee and Accompanied by celificate
af shares under transfer,
i} Far framzfer sppication marde by branaferar in resped of partly pad
sharas, no abjection cames from ransfeoe AN fed wiseks of hiz
MEGOipts of nolice ssued by Compary in this redard ws 58 (1)
af Companias Azl 20135
bl Preference share holdors will Be aniiiled ta preferenlial realment
in respect of dividend and Proeeds of iealizaion of apsets af the
LOmMpAY WE--vig equey share nolders wider Gicumsianoas aof
winding up of company,
M Detais of Equity Shares beld By shareholders holding mare than 5 % Mo. of Shares Ho. of Shares
af the equity shares in the Compary - (% of halding) | (% of holding) =
Eharat Bagoria, Moanaging Dreclor S15E0 (14,37 %) | 21560 (14,37 E
Mahanbar Investrent Go Pl Lid 15800 (1060 %) | 15900 (10.80 )
Zen Induslrial Servicas Lid T2 (B3 %) [ 147152 (9.43 %)
Trishud Company Ped Lig TTEE3 748 %) [ 11223 (7.48 )
Drlardn Hakdings | id 10457 (B.57 %) | 10457 (697 %)
Tramira Tea Seeds Co Lid BSES (BGE W) | 8525 (568 %)
Tensta Valley Exports Lid VS PG5 S | 10445 6.5 %)
k) Details of Praference Shares beid by sharehoiders haking Mo. of Shares | No, of Shars
mang Man 5 % - 1% od Fialding) {% af hielding|
Abha Bajoria, [irectar TI000 (43,63 %) | 71000 (438 %)
Bharat Hajora, Managing Dessior ATOO0 (2901 %) [ <7000 (29,09 )
Agaslya Bharis Bebeficiaey Triss 000D (EAT 5 [ 10000 (5,17 %)
E L Bajoria & Difwers HUF ADI0I {1852 %) | FO000 18,52 5
Faconcilasion af the number of shares at the beginning snd at ihe end of ihe yRar
Thare his been ma change fmovemeants in number of sharag cuitakanding
a1 e Begining and af B end of the yoar,
TaLal 1,500,000 1.50:0.000
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Teasia Valley Tea Go. Lam#ed
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16 Cihor Equiy |
saerva B Sarpkes ]
Fartizubrs B0at Barch 2031 | 151 March 2020
[LIES] Fe}
Gionaral Fhisaneg |
Eakargs st o beginning of fi year 7,500,500 7500050
A Trnshoeed from Relsned ELmgs . ECh
Bitumn sk e ond of Mg yeir T EH000n T 06 (00
Rlabpd Earnings
Balanco a1 M begmneg of te yer 126,707 B4H B TR
A 2 Hems of O Comprehensive o Flogrized
dracily in Feiened Carenge - '
1345 707 648 144,704 205
Al Pl dor e e | L mﬂﬁﬁh
13738, mE 136,
Less. 10 Caetuzrad Hegmran T f
Butbwecs ot oy e of oy 97 2108 152, T |
Todid 144 32 7 144, 2117, B |
[T Ho Crurent Borrowings [Gerund] I
Pamikutars sl Banch 2037 | 31st March 2020
(Hed iz
WiehiChs Loan fies HOFT Bonk Lid TES O5F i
{0 Brurn of Setusiy;
Hypothecatos of Wahicly Purchased
1h) Tremes of Ropoysen:
Ell ol B 2081 From 97,11 2000 10 0710 2025 o ¥ 0%
armunbiend #lecies e of rlees
Trrrn L (013 P #6 D F © ELANEK foan B b 2 500
Lesia - Currmnd Mabiwifes of Losyg Teom Db aEyaar R PR
(] Hakae el Ty
by Panp £ Oh ol s gardares lcaied al
Crafpeehng Dial, West Bangal.
|b1 Frrmmes ol Flisdrgeea
'IEWWWHMBJHHLM1MM
Fitrurary 20LF To Moeeniaes )
e Faale of Infieesd
Iresresst pisviabbe om manthiy basis al MCLR pios 1.50% pa.
Lamige Liovhiy 116,555 At o
% Rpdeasmasie Cumdabve Proderence Stanc ol Ry 1006 sach A0 000 5,200 1]
st with Mok Mo, 18]
Feota | Thesra 1 nolr duilaasll i reparpmant of i bpal or mismat
against B abown foaees,
TG__HI 17,371,517 15355.]"]-1-
[3E Serrent Bormwings ]
Particulars Sl March 2007 | 31e March 2020
Rs} [RE|
S@gured Loane repargbals o dusiiarsd Irom Ranks:
Lash Crodd Limid froom HOFC Bank Lisied i T GE 44 150
) Mol of Sacurty
Exchisivr dtvirge by wary o hypsthasison of comant seis
andl rayse bl feed asceets [rechabng VYot i sgquimed undar
penceads of Vehical Lednd and nouinhls morgage o
Lana il Faclory Bulding of Taa Eatales
Lean #mH OF C BANL 11 400,000
Weraeg Copial Lot {0 T Caah Credi)
Lezs _ Canmond Meurses of Long Tem Delds 1,080,000
500
| Mafues of Sy
0% gualinien rom NDETC (Minsay o Fianos, Goel of Indial
=) Teme of Repaymidl
(Equsl monialy Instalment of R 18657, pach saning bem
15102001 To 15 103024}
] Faie of bderest
Iedirmsd pryabbe O MOnInty Bedk @ 8,75 % pa Fieed
Win-Sircnned
Lo froim Oeedcor 15 G500 123,800,000
Lovan frowm Fridabisd Poardes 4500000 3,200,000
Heske : Temra 12 ne defaultin repayment of princigal of inlerest
againak thi st Doses.
Tetal FLIAETE | ToAkL T |




| 19. Trade Payables

Particulars 31st March 2021 | 315t March 2020

L {Rs.) (Rs.)
Total outstanding dues of MSME 152 652 244 B33
Tatal oustanding dues of Creditors ather than MSME 15,108,235 13,581 872
Total 15,298 887 14,236,505

| 20. Other Financial Liabilities

Farticulars st March 2021 | 31st March 2020
(Rs.) 1Rz}
Component of Vehicle loan repayable within & yvear ; 198 397 23,628
Component of Term Loan repayable within a year - 833,337 2,900,003
Component of working Capital Loan repayable within a year 1,500,000 -
Short Term Maturity on Lease Chligation 53,550 59128
Interes! accruad an Unsecured Loan 1,601,701 1,504_078
Employees dues paysble 7045 8975 4 456 5915
Other Payahbles 408,432 24,000
Tatal 12,043 452 8,607,757
[ 21 Gther Current Liabilitics
Particulars st March 2021 | 31st March 2020
{Rs.) (Rs.)
Advance from customers 61,590,711 48,107 294
Slabutory Liabildies 21,433 152 17,619,485
Total 83,023,503 65,726 759

| 22. Current Tax Liabilities [ Met)

Farticulars st March 2021 | 31st March 2020
{Rs.) (F5.)
Pravisian for Income/Agricultural Tax Net of advance Tax Rs. 1639182/ 410,818 410,818
{P. Y. Rs,1639182/)
Total 410,818 410,818 |
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Teesta Valley Tea Co. Limited

| 23. Revenue from operations ;

|

Particulars

3=t March 2021

31st March 2020

~ (Bs.) {Fs.)
(A} Sale of Producls
sale of Tea - Orthodox (Domestic) 145,161,225 153,395 981
(B} Other Qperating Revenues
Tea Board Orthodox Subsidy 1,136 844 1,155,210
Sale of Tea Plants = 1,765.4995
Insurance Claim on Tea 3,116
Toedal 146,298,069 156,323,302

[ 24. Other Income :

Particulars 31st March 2021 | 31st March 2020
(Rs.) (Rs.)
Cther Inferest Income (NABARD) 165,883 192,580
Other Inferest Income (WBSEDC) 55 GAE LS BM
Sundry receipts 3,780 1,875,000
Profit on sale of Assets 50,245 .
Sundry Credit Balancs writtan Back 44 360
Tolal 320,606 2167.7TT1
[ 25. Change in Inventories of Finished Goods {Tea) © |
Particulars d1st March 2021 | 31st March 2020
{Rs.) (Rs.)
Crpening Steck 92,943,535 90,505,275
Clozing Stock 105,519 635 92,943 535
Total {12.576,100) {2,438,260)
| 25A. Change in Biological Assets : - |
Particulars 31st March 2021 | 31st March 2020
{Fz.) (Rs.)
Fair Value of Biclogical Assets Other than Bearer
Plants (Unharvested Tea Leaves)
As at Opening data ¥, 748,200 11,842 620
Az at Closing date 23,911,500 7,748,200
Total (16,163,300) 4,094,420




Teesta Valley Tea Co. Limited

| 26, Employees Benefit Expenses

Particulars 3=t March 2021 | 31st March 2020
(Rz.) {Rs.)
Szlanies, Wages & Bonus 82,718,359 7807, 754
Cantribution to P.F, and Other Funds 12,726,726 13,438,727
Gratutity 3012878 1,751,370
Staff & Labour Wallare Expenses 11,823 418 13,438 277
Tolal e 110,281,381 106,435 128
| 27. Finance Cost : B |
Particulars 31zt March 2021 | 31st March 2020
L (Fs.) IRs.)
Interest Expenses &
(a) Interest Expenses T.435 551 T.575.143
i) Bank charges 12,270 23,938
Tolal 7447 820 T.5899 081

| 28.0epreciation and Amortization Expenses |

Particulars 31st March 2021 | 31st March 2020
(=) {Rs.)

On Fixed Assets 4,959,770 5,087,107

On Intangible Assets 65 557 05320

Tolal 5,025,327 5,182 427
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Teesta Valley Tea Co. Limited

| 29. Other Expenses :

|

Parliculars 3=t March 2021 | 31st March 2020
1Rs.) Rz}
Auditor's remuneration ;-

Audit Fees 51,0040 54,000
Consumpdion of Stores and spare parts (100% domests) 15,343,600 15,824 902
Power and Fuel 3,466,291 3,.43.758
Fent 199 435 192, 741
Repairs o Buldings 598,200 260,191
Fepairs to Machinery 1,500,277 459,041
Insurance 641,737 1,086 202
Hales & Taxes 4,700 192 524
Cultivation Expenses 20,083,047 15,447 2849
Tea Cess & Excise Duly 5,893 9,400
Sales Expenses 3,837 475 3,317 354
Carrige of Tea GaT 228 Ta8,843
Repairs to Others HED AGT 671,691
Direciors Fees 100,000 ), [0
Telephone, Telex & Other Expenseas 34,088 145,355
Denit Balancas Writtn off 32,808 v
Miscalanaous Expanses 3,840,554 3,726,080

Tatal o1,442 642 45,856,871

2848, Details of Miscellaneous expenses @

Farticulars J1st March 2021 | 31st March ZDEEI—|
(F3.} {Rz.}
Elgctricily Charnges 144,655 183,199
Legal & Professional Charges 1,286,800 1,582,073
Mabar Car Expenses 23422 3,260
Primting & Stationerny 361,235 152,932
R O C Filing Fees 18,466 16,400
Subserplion Go2 674 451,172
Traveling & Coneyance Expenses 161,483 105,085
Ldvenisemeni 13,844 5,160
Postage & Couner Charges 3025 0413
Cither Expenzas 1,275,252 1,123,386
Total 3,940,894 3,726,080
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3. Related parties in transaction and nature of relationships with them :

a)  Key Management Personnel (KMP)
Mr. Bharat Bajoria - Managing Director
Mr. Bishnu Charan Dalai - CFO
Ms Sncha Singhania— Company Secretary-

b} Relative of KMP
Mrs Abha Bajoria (spouse of Mr Bharat Bajoria — Managing Director)

¢l Directors :
Radhey Kant Dixit
Mudit Bajoria
Abha Bajoria
Ram Kishan Nowal
Dhruv Bajorin

2} Enterprises over which any person described in (a) above is able to exercise Significant
influence.
The Tingamira Tea Seed Co. Limited
Teesla Valley Exports Limited
Orlanda Holdings Limited
Budge Budge Investment Co Pvt Ltd

by Disclosure of Transactions carried out with the related parties in the ordinary course of the

busingess.
Traresactioen with T KMP Enterprises where KMP Belatiers of KA Drectars
Relaand partied | has sipnifcant mfluence
3132001 | 3182000 | 3133021 | 3133000 | 3152001 | 3132070 | 3103.2083 | 31.03.2000
Sales i | FagamEEs | soos1017 | - - I
EXPENDITURE ) - mi|
Interist Paid IETAS | AREOOD 1518132 | 1358453
Fopnt i . : 120000 | 120000 . E
Femuneratian §7EA000 1242600 = .
Miscellaneces Experses - 120000 120000 -
Baard Meeting Fers . B - . 75000 0000 | T 40O
FINANCE £ INVESTASENTS i
Laan taken |ret) HE - 00000 | - 4100000 | 3300000 | - =
Laan refunded hack {noth r ZAGIOO0 | 2CEO000 - - .
Bank Guarinlis Reniwal 170000000 | 170000000 © - . - -
CUTSTANDING
Loan taken - - ASOMO0 | 3RNGO0 | 1565000 | 13600000
| Interest Fayabie X 2 ITIM IS0 | 1574331 | 1233508 | -
Ealng adugngs Laken | EIZTIL | 4810770 | - : = =
| Direciars Fees | - TAD0 SA000
Cther Payable : | ETen ] , = =, _
Rank Guararies I 170000000 | 170000000 | - . . -

72



33

30,

Earning per Share ;

Net Profitf{Loss)as per Profit & Loss Account

Less: Preference dividend on Pref, Shares

Net Profit/(Loss) attributable to Equity Sharcholders
Mo. of Equity Sharcholders

Earning Per Share (Of Rs. | 0/-each) basic & diluted

Raw Material Produced & Consumed — Green Leaf (in Kygs)

Finished Goods (Quantity in Kgs)

Opening Stock of Tea

Actual Production of Tea

Sale of Tea

Samples,Garden use, shortage ete.
Closing Stock of Tea

Contingent Liabilitics & Commitments (not provided for) -
a) Claim against company not acknowledge as debt ;

Agriculture Income Tax (1975-76) under appeal

Income Tax (TDS) for the Asst Year 1993.04

Income Tax for the Asst Year 2013-2014

Income Tax for the Asst Year 2014-2015

(Disallowed by the authorities and challenged by the Company)

Damages charge demand raised by P F authorities for delayed
payment 0 P F dues between 1996-1997 1o 2013-2014
(Disputed by company in Calcutta High court against which
Rs. 25,00,000/- had been deposited to Court)

b) Arrears of Dividend on Fixed Cumulative Pref Shares

¢) Gurantes furnished to Bank

31.03,2021

31.03.2020

1 1,60.505
9,72,000
|,88,905

|, 50,000
1.26

17,40,972

97 835
3,78,048
3,51,306

9,404
116,073

80,319
123,568
41,62.620

3.19,530

43,29.373

1,06,92,000

(82,38,594)
9,772,000
(72,66,594)
150,000
(4%.44)

16,92,976

97,317
3.85.070
3,74.708

9844
or.835

£0,339
1,23.568
41,62,620
3,019,530

4320373

§7,20,000

17,000,000 17,00,00,000

Loan to Body Corporate Rs. 4,09.732/- (P.Y. Rs. 4.08.732/-) relates to a party against whom
company has filed recovery suit. No interest income has been recognised thereon, though

claimed under suit as a measure of ahundant
has been claimed under the suit,

precaution in due adherence of AS -9 though same

Information pursuant to Section 186 (4) of Companies Act, 2013 : Guaraniee furnished in
favour to HDFC Bank Limited on behalf of Teesia Vallcy Exports Limited for Rs. 17 Crore
towards sald company’s availment of working capital facility from bank.

#
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31.03.2021

Capital Manapement

The Company’s policy focuses on maintenance of stable and strong capital
base 50 a5 toomaintain investors creditors and market conditions to sustain
future developments and srowth of the business in order 1o maintain the
capilal base of the company as a going concern, The retum on capital as
well as dividend to the shareholders of the company.

Capital includes issued capital and all Equity Reserve and Debts
obligation to third party. Company menitor eapital on following
bearing ratio.

Total Equity [63082T08
l'otal Debis 195193226
Debtz Equity Ratio % [.20

Financial Risk Management

The company’s Tinancial risk management is integral part of how to plan

and execute its business strategies and its risk policies are monitored by

the Board. The companies aclivilies to expose to varieties of risks such as
credit risk, liquidity risk and market risks eccordingly frame its policies 10
minimize the adverse effects.

Credit Risk : *Credit risk is the risk that counter party will not meets its
obligation (o a Gnencial loss of the company.

“The company has its policics to limits its exposure 1o credit risk arising from
eul slanding receivables from the

*Customers, review ifs payment terms, credit limits of each customers Periodically.

Ligquidity Risk

‘Liguidity risks is the risk that the company may face its obligation
to timely ce payments its credit facilities,

“The company closely monitors its cash flow and ensuring timely
collections of its receivables as well as — “movements of inventores,
The table below summarics the maturity profile of its liabilities.
‘Tayable on demand/within a vear

‘Barrowing — Secured 83344578
“Trade Payables 15208887
Other Financial Liabilitics P20 3452
“Other Current Liabilitics 83023903
Total-A 195710820

‘Payable on | to 5 years
‘Bormwing — Secured

‘Borrowing — unsecured 316655
Total-B 316655
Total - (A+H) 194027475

%

Ason
31052020

161907848
162194830
[.00

TIB42790

14236503
Bo0775z

63726759
L6I413806

FT0205
370205
161784011
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44,

41.

Market Risk :Market risk is the risks of fluctuation of fair value of jis products, since
Company’s business is asriculture in nature, adverse, weather condilion,
demand/supply gap and interest rate may effects its cash flow, so corpany

maonitors and changes its exposures as well s sales strategics.

[nierest Risk : “The company’s interest are at fixed rate, Details ane given below:

*Secured loan- 050 T
“Unsecured [pan 200 L.00
Sceorities encumbared with Banks =

Yehicle Q543529 23628
Buildings 3I0E53583 31737545
Plant & Machinery B2E4033 8152313
Bearer Planis 181951137 1705352691
Trade Receivables 26L220 202a]115
Inventaries 107784474 7173243

New Standardsia mendments applicd during the Year in respect of company’s Fingneial
Statements : On 28 March, 20 8, the Ministry of Corporate Alfairs (MCA) has notified Ind AS
113 Revenue from Contracts with Customers and cerlain amendment to existing Ind AS. These
amendments shall be applicable to the cormpany from 1 April 2018,

a) Ind AS 115 Revenue from Contracts with costomers (MNew) — Ind A5 115 superseds nd AS 11,

an amount that reflects the consideration 1o which the entity expects to be entitled in
exchange for thuse goods and SETVides,

h) Ind As 12 - Income Tax {Amendment)- Consideration of resigetive lax laws in sources of sxable
profit and crossponding reversal of deductible temporary differences,

t} Ind AS 21- The Effects of thanges in Foreign Fxchanse Rates {(Amendment) — on application of
newly inserted appendix B pertaining o forcign Currency in comnection of non muonefan
assetsliabilitics. The impact of the ahove new standards.amendments did not have material impact on
the financial statements,

Reconcilation of Lease Liability:

L. Future MLL.P (Tatal Installment - Interest) 12,770,679
2Interest Acerued 200475
3. Lease Amount as on 31.03.2021 (i.e future MLL_P- [nlerest accrued) 3,70, 204

7%



42, Revenue from the contracts with customers disspgregated based on primary geographical markets, major
products, type of sales and type of customers.

For the period ~ For the period
) ended 31.03.2021 ended 31.03.2020
Type of Goods & Serviees | L
Crthodox Tea _14.51,61,235% | 15,33,98,981/-
) Tutal 14,5161, 225/- | 15,33.95.981/-
Geographical Region o
West Hengal, Kolkata 14,551,601, 225/ 15,353,985, 981/
Total | 14,51,61,225~- | 15,33,08,981-
Type of Sales
Manufactured 14,51,61,225/- 13.33.98.981/-
Total 14.51.61.225/- 15.33.98.981/-
Type of Customers -
MNon Govenment  14.51.61,225/- 15.33,98,981/-
: _ Total 14,51,61,225/- 15,33.98.981.-

43, COVID-1Y ;-

The cutbreak of COVID-19 and consequent imposition of national Lockdown by the Government of India to deter
s impact sesiously affected the economic activities and operational performance of the Company, The management
heas considered the possible effect that may arise from the pandemic on the recoverability'caming valwe of the assels,
Based on the current indicators of future economic conditions, the Company management expects 1o recover the
carrying amounts of the assets. However, as the wend suggests future economic eonditionss may be subject to
material changes in days shead. Given the unecitainty, the final impact on company's assets in future may difffer
from that estimited at the date of clesing of financeial statement of the company.

S The figures of the financial statement are expressed m absolute term due to shorlage of work force as against

Clarse-5,8chedule-iii of division —fi Inying down presentation of Tignere to the nearest of hundredthousand/
lukhs /million or decimal thereof.

Far Baue Chanchans & Dab

Chartered Accountands

F.MNa 104043E

Biswarath Chativpadhyay

Parter

[fe.M e OSTROD) Biuisat Bajoris Mudit Bajoria  Ram Kishan Nowal B C Dalai Encha Singhania

UOIN ;21051 BDOAAAABE1415 Bunaging Director Dinecho Director CFO Company Secratary
Flace: Kalkata OIN - 31059241 DN ;

DOE15402 : DM : DDZ100ZE

Dated :The 41k Soptember , 2021
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